
J. D. FREDERICKS.

IN THE SUPF£IOR COURT 'OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES.

•

Dept. No. 11.

---0---
Hon. Geo. H. Hutton, Judge.,

The People of the State of California. )
)

Plaintiff. )
)

vs. )
)

Clarence Darrow. )
1\ ) ,

Defendant. )

---0---

REPORTERS» TRANSCRIPT.

VOL. 3'1

I N D E X.

No. ?3?3.
;:',.;\! ,.\

Jol:n R. Hal'r ington,

Direct. Cross.

2930

Re-D.
~. .

\ "

LOS ANGELES COUNTY B, N. Smith,
Official Rep



VOLUMES 37 to 40 (Inc.)

WITNESS:

John R. Harrington, Vol. 37

John R. Harrington, Vol. 38

John R. Harrington, Vol. 39

John R. Harrington, Vol. 40

,...,--



c~2U

MONDAY, JUNE 24, 1912; 1:30 P.M.

on the stand for further cross-examir-ation:

Defendant in court with counsel.

Case r esurned.

J 0 H N

Jury called; all presen~.

R. IT A R R 1 N G TON,

6

7

8

9

10

11

THE COUR T· You niay proceed with the cross -exarr,ination.

MR. ROGERS. hll. Harrington, you said you were not testifyin

for immuni ty. Why, then,· did you demand immunity before

you testified!'

MR. FREDFRICKS. Objected to upon the ground it is inconl-

petent, irrelevant and immaterial.

12 THE COUR T. Ov-erruled.

13 I

14 I

15 1

16

A On account of the threats that you made in open court.

MR. ROGERS. Q What threats did 1 make in open court?

A You made some reference to there being other counties

in this state and other prosecutors.

17 Q Your conscience hurt you about some other counties in

18 this state?

19 MR. FORD· Objected to as incompetent,irrelevant and irrma­

20 teria1 and not cross-examination.

21 THE COURT. Objection sustained.

22 MR. EOGERS. Q 16 there something that yeu are conscious

23 of about other counties in this state that made you think

24 that those were threats when 1 mentioned other counties?

25 MR. FORD. Objected to as calling for a conclusion

26 \V i tnes s; incon!peten t, irrelevan t and immater ial .
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1 MR. ROGERS. Explain his answer.

2 THE CCURT. 1 don't think you can go that far, Mr. Rogers.

3 Objection sustained.

4 MR • ROGERS. Exception.

5 Q You say you demanded immunity because 1 made some threat

6 about other counties in this state. If there is nothing

7 in any other county in this state that you are afraid of,

8 why did those references to other counties appeal to you as

9 threats?

10 MR. FORD. Objected to as not cross-examination and as

11 argumentative; incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial.

12 THE COUR T. Overruled.

13 A 1 did it as a matter of protection so you could not carr

14 out your thr ea ts •

15 I MR. ROGERS. Q. Will you mention any threat 1 made?

themselves are the best evidence.

16

17

MR. FORD. Objected to on the ground that the records

Got the record here in

18 court •

A You said there were other counties in this state and

other prosecutors, and the matter would not end here.

MR. ROGERS. Q Did 1 say the matter would not end here?

!!R. FORD' Objected to as incompetent, irrelevant and imma­

terial and not cross-exan;ination and not the best evidence.

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

MR • ROGERS. Cause for his concl us ion.

THE COURT. Overruled.

THE COURT. Objection Bustained.
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1 MR. ROGERS. Q Don't you know, as a ffiatter,of fact, 1

2 didn't say anything about the matter not ending here in the

3 argument to the court, 1 merely mentioned that there were

4 other counties in this state, over which this court had

5 no jurisdiction, isn't that true?

6 MR. FORD. Objected to as incompetent, irrelevant and

7 irrmaterial and not cross-examination.

8 'THE COUR T. Objection sustained.

9 MR. ROGERS. Q So you thought it a ~atter of precaution

10 to demand immuni ty, al though you ha\Te never done anything?

11 MR. FORD. Objected to as having been already answered.

12 TBFCOlmT. Objection sustained.

13 MR. ROGERS. Exception.

14

15 I
16 I

Q You turned around to the Judge, didn't you, and asked

him to say to you that you were testifying mnder compulsio~

why did you do that?

A Did it so as to make sure of my ground before 1 pro-

ready answered, no t cross-examination; incorr!petent, irre-

MR· FORD· Objected to as haVing been gone into fully, al-

THE COURT. Overruled.

MR. FORD· Obj ec ted to as already answered.

ceeded.

THE COURT' Overruled.

MR. ROGERS. Q And what ground did you Vi an t to make sure

of?

levant and in~aterial.
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1 A That 1 would not be subjected to any further--to any

2 prosecution in tre future.

3 MR • ROGERS. Q What did you think you might be prosecuted

5 MR. FORD· Objected to as irrelevant and immaterial, not

6 haVing been--not being cross-examination.

7 THE COURT· Overruled.

8 A Not knowing what you had in mind at the time you spoke

9 1 could not answer.

10 MR • ROGERS. Q You thought ict- was an idle remark, then,

11 ~aving no meaning to you?

12 I MR. FORD· Obj ected to as calling for a concl us ion of the

13 witness, not cross-examination; incompetent, irrelevant ani

14 immater ial •

15 THE COURT· overruled.

16 A No, sir, 1 could not tell.

17 MR. ROGERS. Q IS there anything in your mind now that

being cross-examination, not proper cross-examination.,

Counsel well knows that the only manner in which a witness

can be impeached. along that ground, is not by instances. .

makes that remark about other prosecutors significant to

you?

MR. FORD· . If the court please, we object to that as not

of specific misconduct, but by shoWing that the general

reputation of the witness for truth, honesty or integrity.

is bad. If there is anything counsel has in mind that

18
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1 wi tness rr,ay have done that shows his relation to the case,

2 he has a right to ask him about it, but-he has no right

3 to ask the witness anything about misconduct in the past

4 except to ask him if he has ever been convicted of a felony,

5 he may ask him that. Now, he is insinuating misconduct

instances, even if he should recite a specifio instance

of mis con due t on the par t of this 11 i tness, i t would no t be

proper cross-examination.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

on the part of this Witness by his question. Specific
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1 THE COUR'l': Certainly would not; no doubt about your posi tjm.

2 JTR F01ID: If he \vishes to show something thi s wi tness has

3 done in relation to the case, let him put the question,

4 but he cannot go off in a wild speculation whether this

5 witness has ever misconducted himself in any manner.

6 THE COURT: This, I take it, is on the theory of searching

7 his mind as to the statement he was not testifying for a

8 particular object.

9 1:rR FORD: If that is the obj ect, ,we obj ect upon the

10 grolUld it has been fully answered.

11 TEE COUHT: 'Well, I am not so sure but that obj ection is

12 I well taken, but will resolve the doubt by ove~ruling it

13 and let it go in cgain.

14 A 'Hhat is the question. (Last question read by the

151 reporter.) A No sir.

16 ltlR HOGEHS: Then, why is it you d emended immunity before

17

18

19

you testified?----_--:-- .-- ------,,---
lJrR :FOT:ID: '7e obj ect to t hat on the ground it has been fully

answered.

20 THE COlffiT: Obj ection sustained.

211m ROGEHS: You demanded immlini ty from prosecution, did

22 you not, before you testified? ~by did you do it?

231m FOPJ): We obj ect to that on the ground it has been

24 fully answered.

25 lER 70GB 'RS: If you had nothir.g to be prosecuted

26 HR FORD: '\7e olject to that on the ground it has
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did not.

Q, Did you ever meet Franklin any place outside of your

2927
1

Hoffman C~fe

your office

A No sir.

A At 1,ft Lowe.

At any time or place or under any circumstances? A No

And you say his visits td you in

Are you as sure you never met Franklin at the

Did you eve~ meet Franklin at the Waldorf saloon?

Not between you? A No sir.

And lrt Lowe, yes.

\

You gave Franklin money, though, didn't you? A I

lIo sir.

Q.

Q,

didn't exceed three times? A Oh, comparatively few times;

Q, \Vhat? A And 1ft Lowe, that I testifi 00.

A No sir, never a dollar went between us.

Q.

Q.

it might have been more than three; it was very, very few.

Q, You had many t ransacf'tions ';;i th Franklin, di dn' t you?

sir.

Q You are sure of that? A yes sir •

Q No~i, you said you did not meet him, you did not recall

whethei you ever met him on the c.fternoon of November 27th.

Do you~esire to change your ansyrer in that particular,

you stay VIi th it? A I stay right '.'Ji th it.

office and his house?

Q

A

A lfy memory serves me that way, yes sir.

it Your memory serves you that 'Nay? Ayes sir.

it Axe you. ':villing to sC'.y posi tively that you never did
\

meet Franklin at the Hoffrran Cafe? A Yes sir.
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that means.

eros s- examineti on.

1m HOGERS: No sir.

A I

Because you do

A No sir, be-

why do you say t "I do not r e<fall. "?

do riot r ec all.

MR ROGERS: He said he didn't remember;. he didn t t r ec all.

Of course, all lav,ryers are familiar ,'lith that" didn't

remem.b.er" and I'didn' t r ec all" answer. 'He all know Vlhat

being asked and given now.

the witnews, the same ans\vers elicited from him that are

proc ending s.

THE COURT: That is my recollection of Baturd~ts

state whether or not Franklin c aIled on you about half

not wish to make a positive statement?

on the afternoon of November 27, as you have said that you

did not meet him on the morning of November 28th?

HR FREDEHICK.S: That is obj ec t ed to, may it please, ' the

court t on the ground it was fully gone into SaturdtWon

past 3 or 4 o'clock in the afternoon of november 27th?

lrR FREDEPJCKS: In which the same questions were asked of

cause there VlaS nothing transpired that v/ould refresh my

recollection as to a visit t if he did come to my office.

Q, Will you say as positively that you did not meet him
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result in later.

the answer is not fair and an honest answer. 1 will venture

MR • FREDJmlCKS. Yes, sir,

You carne so near covering this ground

And we all know just exactly what that may

In view of the evidence we will introduce it

MR • ROGERS.

the tr anser ipt.

MR 0 FREDERICKS. We wi 11 take your evidence when you do.

k'R • ROGERS. 1 have no doubt you will.

MR. FREDERICIS. Simply impossible--

THE COURT. Just a moment, gentlemen, 1 want to look at

on paye 2918 that it is diff icul t to see the differ enc e,

but 1 assume you do not expect to pursue it very far--

kWH • ROG ERS • No, s ir •

THE COURT.· --and 1 will resolve the doubt by letting

MR • ROGERS.

will· become farcical, thls answer.

Witness answer the question.

to say that any man would have to give that answer if asked

about whether he had met an acquaintance or friend at one

certain day without there being sornepartieular thing to

call it to his attention, he would have to say he didn't

remember.
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A In "1r.

Q Yes. A yes, sir.

Q You had the key to the safe, didn 1 t you? A Yes, sir. 1

had one key, not "the" key. There were several keys.

Q How many keys were there? A 1 don ' t know.

Q You know ~~r. Darrow did not have any combination or key

to that safe, don't you? A 1 do not know.

Q What is that? A 1 do not know.

Q You never saw him use it? A No, sir.

Q You never saw him have it, did you? A No, sir.

office in the Higgins Building, didn t tnyou'?'

Harriman ' s office?

16
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20
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1 A What is the question?

2 (Question read by the reporter.)

3 A 1 didn't say that 1 didn't meet him on the afternoon of

4 November 27th, but 1 do say poai tively that 1 did not meet

5 him on the morning of the28th.

6 MR • ROGERS. Q Now, why is it that you ar e uncertain abou t

7 the one and absolutely certain about the other?

8 MR. FREDERI'KS. We object to that by reason of the fact

9 that that same question has been asked and answ~red a great

10 many times, iden tically the same ques tion.

11 MR. ROGERS. 'I think the witness knows what 1 mean.

12 MR. FORD. If the Court please, the witness does no t know

13 any more than we do about it.

14 THE COURT. Objection sustained.

15 MR. ROGERS. Q You had the combination to the safe at



Q And you occasionally us ed it? A Yes, sir.

Q Did you use it on the afternoon of November 27th?

A 1 dan t t remember.

Q Will you say you did not? A No, sir.

Q Will you say you were not at the safe and opened the

Q Why not? A Because 1 don't remember.

Q Is your recollection good? A Fairly;:so.

Q Do you know whether or not you were getting money as a

5

2931
\

1 Q But you had it all tbe time that you were there at the]

2 office, didn't you? A 1 had a key, yes, sir" (

3

4

6

7

8 safe on the afternoon of November 27th? A No, air j 1

9 not.

10

11

12

13 Burns detectiy,e during the time you were pretending to work

14 for the defense 1 A 1 know absolutely that 1 never got a

15 five cent piece or equivalent to a five cent piece from the

16 Burn~ .A&.f2.ncy in my life,' ei ther before or after that cas e.-
17 Q Directly or indirectly? A Indirectly or any other way

18 in GOd's green earth that you can form a question"

19 Q iCo you know what your number was on the Burns roll?

20 MR. FREDERICKS· That is objec ted to, may it please the

21 court, as being foolish and assurLing a fact not in eVidence, ,

22 that he had a number on the Burns de tee tive roll.

23 MR" ROGERS. 1 know that 1 canno t pr oduc e it--

24 THE COURT. Objection sustained"

25 lAR" FORD. You know bet ter •

26 MR" ROGERS. Yes, 1 know better than what you said.
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THE COURT· Objection sustained, and that ends it.

MR • ROGERS. Couns el says 1 know be tter. Cer tainly 1 know

bet ter •

THE COURT. The court's criticism is directed at counsel's

remark on the other side, Mr- Rogers.

MR .. nOGERS. Thank you.

MR. ROGERS. Q lli you know of anybody who saw· you or could

testify to your whereabouts on the morning of the 27th--

on the morning of the 28th of November 1 A Except my

daughter when 1 left the house; we were keeping house •.

Q And do you remember what time that was? A Approximately

a t 9 0 1 C } 0 ck •

Q, Approximately at 9 • A 1 lived at Angels Flight'. and it

only took 10 or 15 minutes to get to the office.

Q Aside from tha t do you know anyone who knew your where­

abouts? A Except the regular help of the office, 1 do not.

Q Do you know anyone who knew your whereabouts on the

afternoon of November 28th--November 27th, 1 beg your

1
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pardon? A No, sir.
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1 Do you mow of anyone Vlho mew your 'Nhereabouts on

2 the cfternoon of Nov~aber 28th? A No sir.

3 Q Can you give us anyone Y/ho mew your 'Jrhereabouts on

4 either of those dates, ex:cept your da'l\.cshter?

5 HR FORD: Obj ected to upon the ground it is not cross- ex:am­

6 ination as to ~:vhat other peopl e may have knO\m about his

7 movementS', is not cross-examination of this '.vitness as to

8 hms ovm movements. It is only laying the foundation for

9 somethil~ else which is not cross-exa~ination•..,.
10 THE COURT: Obj ec tion overruled.

UR HOGERS:

11

12

A I· do not outside 0 f the fac t I was in my offie e.

Do you know the eOTI1er of Third and Los

13 Angeles? A In a general w'ay, yes.

circumstance or what occasion led you to the corn er of

Angeles? A I do not recall.

Third and Los Angeles? A There was no special reason for

my going there. If I went there, it ~as passing by, \~lki

Any business there? A None whatsoever.

Passil~ by, vml~ing where? A At Third and Los Angeles

Well, -'i6lking to ';rhat place? A No particular place

JUst wal~ing? A Just walking. I used to walk arou

Can you give us a sort of an idea wnat business or what

What was the oocasion of your going to Third and Los

'\:7he11? A I dont t remEmber.

Have you been there? A I presume I have.

But you do mow the COTI1er? A I mow the corner.

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q
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1 the different streets of the city. I had no place to go.

2 Q Had no place to go? A No sir, after office hours. I

3 would \valk around.

4 Q How many times did you cever go to Third and Los Angeles

5 A I don,t knovl that I went there over once. There is

6 nothing that fixes it on my mind.

7 Q Not over one e? A I may not. I might have ~one

8 there tvrice. I don't recall. There is nothing fixes it on

9 my mind.

10 Q You s aid you were a laV'JYer, did you not? A yes sir~

11 Q ,~y is it you will admit once at Third and Los Angeles

12 vdthout occasion, without circumstance, V'nthout reason for

13 your being there, and won't admit more thm one e?

14 UR FORD: Objected to upon the ground that the whole ques-

15 tion is a sUbject of argument; incompetent, irrelevant and

16 immaterial, and not cross-examination.

17 1JTR ROGEP3: \',1hen the witness demands im.muni ty, if your

18 Honor please, that places him in the category sL~gested by

19 the ?th Appellate, and permits an interrogation as to his

20 reasons, his statements, his whereabouts, and his cctions

21 in full.

22 TEE COUBT: Your question assumed at least one fact not

23 in evi"dence, llr Rogers.

241m FR1!--:DERICKS: Assuming that he has said positively that

25 he was ever at the corner of Third and Los Angeles.

26 ~ives his j~dgment that he was there, probably.
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Assumes that he ','.lent there without occasionTHE COURT:

or reason.

MR 1WGERS: That is true. Your Honor's criticism is good.

Now, you have admitted that you have been there at least

one e, but you won't admit more than one e. Were you there

mo re than one e? A I do no treeall.

l'fR FORD: .rust a moment -- viell, he has ansvlered.

:MR HOGERS: Will you t ell us ~Jlything, any ci rcumst anc e, .

any occasion that led you to the corner of Third and Los

Angeles, except the once? A I didn't say I was led

there by any occasion once.

Q Will you give us the ci rcumstance or purpose or reason

that led you there the once?

JIR FaRD : Obj ec t ed to --

THE COURT: Overruled.

A Th ere ',,'Jas no sp ec ial reason, vvalking c,round.

J,fR HOGERS: Just Yrcilki4:s around. A yes.

Q Looking the landscape o'er, as it were; so? A I was

velking around there; that is the etplanation I give for

being there.

Q Do you knoW' ',vho ','JaS there at the same time you were?

A No sir.

Q Do you knoW' hoW' long it was before the 28th day of

Hovember? A I do not.

Q Will you say it ,'..as a week before? A I don, t fix

it in reference to any date; because it .was just
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1 aronnd. There is nothirLg to fix it in my mind at all. I

2 know where the pI ec e is the same as I know wh~ re Fourt h

3 SJild Hill or Sixth and Spring 0 r any oth er co mer yon "11OUl d

4 designate.

5

6

7

Q Do you :::-emember the saloon on th e corner? A No sir.

Q, Were you ever in there? A No sir.

Q Will you say positively yon were not? A I ,viII say

8 absolnteJ¥ and positively that I was nwer in the saloon.

9 Q Were you in the Innch connter at that corner? A No

10 sir.

11

12

Q

Q

Or in any building at that cornefl? A No sir.

When you got to Third c~d Los Angeles, did yon stop

13 and look around a spell and Vie'lll the vari ous angl es of the

14 street, and so forth? A lifo sir.

15 Q You did not? A No sir, I had no interest in the cor-

16 ner at all.

17 Q Had no interest in the corner at all. HrHarrington,

18 how lo~g did you say yon had been a corporation lav~er,

19 so-c aihled?

20 HR F01ID: Obj eo ted to upon th e ground it has been fully

JIR 3.OGE:(s: Ho, it hasn't.

UR RHID: At the very beg il1ni~g 0 f the cross-ex8J-nination,

if the court please, he testified for 10 years he had

been an attorney for the City Railroad Company of

answered.

Chicag o.
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THE COUHr: YJell, he can say it again in one moment.

I asS11-me this is no t going to any 1 ength.

MR FORD: I Yfant to c all the court t s att ention to th e fact

that counsel often goes back an d refers to some question

merely by way a f argument, and asks the same quest ion

over so many times that if we didn't object once, he

will repeat it all day. If I thought he vras going to ask

it onc e and quit, I wonl dn t t obj ec t at alJ..

.,
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I.

I
I
I

THE COrnT. 1 am not criticising you for objecting, Mr.

Ford, but 1 think in this particular instance it is quicker

to get the answer than to object, that is the sole reason 1

overruled the objection •

A From 1902 to 1909.

MR • ROGERS. Q You say from 1902iYoU 'Nere connected wi th

the City Railway Company long before that, weren't you?

A Yes, 6 ir •

Q. How long were you connected with them before 1902?

A Since 186.

Q Since 18861 A Yea, air •

Q Then it is from 1886 to 1909 that you were connected with

the Chicago Ci ty Railway Company. A Yes, sir.

Q That is,:'a street railway conpany? A Yes, sir.

Q Did you ever receive any money either directly or in-

directly from Foster? A Never a cent in my life.

Q Did you ever do any work f or Foster? A No, sir.·

Q Directly or indirectly? A No, sir.

Q Did you and he attempt to do work together then?

"A Yea, air.

Q You know whom 1 mean, Foster? A Yes, air.

Q For the Erectora 1 Association? A Yes, air.

Q You know he is a kind of what you people call an investi

gator for the Erectors' Association? A So 1 understand.

Q. And you did work wi th him together? A Worked for Mr.

Lawler, 1 did.

Q Work for Mr. Lawler, you did? A Yes,
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1 -q;,enae of getting pay for work.

2 Q You mean Mr. Oscar Lawler, the special prosecutor for the

3 Government? A Yes, air.

4 Q Have you been paid by the United States Governmen t for

5 anything? A Not a dollar outside of Witness fees.

6 Q How much money have you been paid by the United States

7 Gover nreen t ?

8 MR. FORD. Paid Witness fees.

9 JAR. ROGERS. Q 1 don t t care What it is for.

10 MR. FREDERICKS. Objected to onthe ground it is immater ia.

11

12

13

in view of the witness IS previous answer, he had received

witness fees.

MR. FORD. And the law fixes that as $3.00 a day. It ia

14 easy to compute how' much he got.

15

16

17

MR • ROGERS. Le t t S aee what he a aid 9

THE COURT· overruled.

MR • JFREDERICKS' Now, he is asking how much wi tness fees he

18 got.

Q Are you sure of that? A rositively and absolutely

MR. ROGERS. No, 1 am not; 1 am asking how much he got

from the United States Government directly or indinectly.

A It was directly; 1 got $338.00 the last trip 1 Was here,

and the first trip including railroad fare and everything

was $118.00.

Q Is that all the money you ever got for coming out here

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

after you say you left the defense? A Every dollar.
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tain.

indef init e.

THE COURT. Objection sustained.

MR • ROGERS. Q You say you never were paid any money in

connection With the prosecution of :v1r- Darrow in Los Angeles?

Q Where did you casb your drafts? A The first one-­

cashed both in Chicago, 1 think.

Q At what place in Chicago? A At the Hibernian Bank.

Q You say you never cashed-- A Either that or the I

Englewood Bank, my wife-- I
I

Q 1 beg your pardon, you have not finished? A 1 may have

endorsed them over to my wife and if so they were cashed

at the Englew~od Bank, if 1 cashed them or deposited them

myself they were in the Hibernian bank.

Q You say you were paid no money here? A In Los Angeles~

MR. FREDERICKS. By the United States Government, 1 sup­

pose?

MR. ROGERS_ Q No, 1 do not say that.

MR - FREDERICKS. Then 1 object to it ontre ground it is

Q Not a dollar? A No, sir.

A 1 do not say that, 1 got--

Q ~ow, the United States Government paid you--

THE COURT' He has Dot finishedhis answer.

A 1 gqt fees in this case last week amounting to

MR. ROGERS. Q Any other money besides that? A Not a

dollar •
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Q By that you mean no money at all? A No money at all.

Q And you are sure that is all the money that you have

received in connection with the prosecution of this case,

ei ther from the United States Governmen t or from any other

source? A Yes, sir.

Q And you are posi tive of it? A Yes, sir •

Q How long have you been here at this time? A 1 left

Chicago on the 21st of May.

Q Were you sUbpoenaed? A Yes, air.

Q 2la t of May? A No, sir.

Q When were you sUbpoenaed? A Before 1 left Los Angeles

in March.

Q . In March 'you were subpoenaed to be here when? A On the

15th of May 0

Q You went back to Chicago? A Yes, air.

Q And then t;eturned here? A Ye~ air.

Q You have been living down at the beach, I understood

you to say, down at Ocean P:uk? A Yes, sir.

Q You gave the place of your residence there as what?

A At the Merrimac Apartments; it is either 209 or 309

Ocean Front.

Q Mr. Cooney you say lived there? A He did live

yes, s~r.

Q Mr. Fi tzpatr ick , you said, did live there? A

th ere yet.

Q He lives there yet? A Ye8, sir •
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1 did.

Those are two witnesses in the matter? A Yes, sir.

A No, sir.Behm lived there too?

Are you sure of that? A YeB, Bir •

A block away) you said? A Yes, Bir.' "

Did you Bee Mr. Behm back east before he carne out here? /
C"'-/

1 Q

2 Q

3 Q

4 Q

5 Q

6 A

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23·

24

25

26
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1

2

3

4

Q

Q

Q

Q

Vmat? A yes sir.

Where? A At Mr Darrow's house.

I mean after th at? A 1'10 sir.

Are you sure t hat you did not see him? A Abso1ut ely

5 positively certain.

ments at any time? A No sir.

A yes sir, I do.

ad by you to the prosecution in this case at any time?

in other

yes sir.

Have you any reservation about that, or are you answer

-
Did you deliver to the District Attorn~ any documents

Of this year? A yes sir.

Did you deliver to him any documents? A lil'o sir.

Have you ever delivered to th eprosecution an:>r docu-

Did you see him more than once? A Ho sir.

Did you see Ur veetch back there? A yes sir... \...

Where? A In my office.

When? A About the 1st of May.

at any time? A No sir.

dress "to any '!fitness, with a reservation

THE COURT: The vdtness has answered,

A

ing the qUffition with a full understanding of ~nat it means

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

?}[R FORD: VIe obj ect to that as not a proper question to ad-

Q.

Q Do you mean to say that no documents had been de1iver-

Q

Q

6
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1 tion fully and positively.

2 1m ROGEl1S: INhere did this teleg~~am that has already been

3 introduced in evidence come from, do you lmow?

4 l1R FREDERICKS: That is obj ected to as assuming th at this

5 vfitness lal.iliv.rs c.nything about that telegra'ITJ. -- \vell, I will

6 withdraw it.

7 Iffi FORD: Yon are referring c to the telegram from Johann-

8 sen?

being the original tel €gram, I presume they got it from

\

A day
/ 7

~/
I

\

A

A yes si •

Were you then pretending to

~

A I have not s cen that telegram, it \

~~en did you give up the code that you have spoken 0

yes sir.

A day or two afte~vards.

Vrhile you '.'rere living at Darrow's house? A Ho sir.

How soon after you had left Darrow's house, did you

Q

A

or two after.

TEE COUH.T: Obj ection overruled.

not cross- &amination.

give them th e information about that telegram?

HR EDGERS: The witness demands innnuni ty.

b e f ri endly vri th Darrow?

lfR FORD: We object to that as irrelevant and immaterial;

TO whom? A Hr Lawler.

the telegraph company'.

Q Did you give them the information about it?

Q Vfuen? A The last of December.

HR H.OGERS: yes.9

10

11

12 I

13

14

15
I
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The prosecutor for the government in the United States

1

2

3

4

to the District Attorney?

Q Yes., A About a month

Q To whom? A ~![r Lawler.

A VThen?

ago.

')/l.C'~C-~Cc_c/ 2945
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c:<)

(>4,( .c.'-(u.._­
'\.
'"

5 cases? A yes sir.

6 Q Where was that? A I mailed it to him.

7 Q Where did you have it? A I had it at home.

8

9 to.

How did you come to mail it to him? A I \W:\s c,sked

10

11

12

13

14

15 I
16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Q You were asked to and you', compli ed? A yes sir.

Q Who asked you to mail him th e code? A Ur Ford.

Q Mr joseph Ford, '!!•.Joseph Ford? A Yes sir.

Vlhy didntt you mail it to Ford instead of to Lawler?

HR FORD: We object to that as irrelevant and immaterial.

THE COURr: Obj ec tion overruled.

A He asked me to mai 1 it to Mr Lawl er~

Q Did you think that \~s a kind of deceivil1,.rs somebody?

Now, if the court please, we object to that

as not prope r c ross-exc.mination.

THE COURT: O'bj ection sustained.

HR FOPJ): I asked him to deliver it to Lawl er; I asked

that because he had the dOClunents

T"tlE COHill': Obj ection sustained.

~ffi FORD: I would like to state my reasons in full; I do

like the inferenc e.

TEE COURr: The obj ec tion is sustained,
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1 satisfy.

2

3

UR APPEL: Let him take the '.d.tness stand and testify.

HR HOGERS: Did you mail any other docUL'1.ents to Hr Lawler

4 at the request of ur Ford? A Ho sir.

5 Q, The code was all? A yes sir.

6 Q Eave you ever mailed any other documents to Lawler?

7 A No sir.

8 Q. Did you ever give any other documents to Lawler?

9 A No sir.

1m FORD:

10

11
I

12 I

o
"

Than the code? A Than the code.

Eave you told t11em where they could get them?

We obj ect to that as irrelevant and immaterial,

'13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

{ 23
\
\

24?
I
~ 25\
\ 26,

I,

not t ending in anywise to impeach any testimony given by

this witness.

loIR ROGERS: Oh, yes, the witness demands immunity.

MR FORD: Immunity from threatened prosecutions without

foundation.

~A:R ROGERS: Immunity from threatened. prosecutions ':vith­

out foundation would not require any man to sit up and de-

mand immuni ty •

THE COUllT: Vfnat is the question? Read it.

1m .APTEL: In view of JIr Fredericks' statement in the

paper "He better come throursh", that is a very poor show-

ing --

]'lR FREDERICKS: Tvrr l\-ppel, I n ever made any such

in the paper, and there is no evidenc e I did.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

, i 10

11
I

I
12 I

I 13

\ 14

1 15
!

16

17
~ 18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

2947

UR APPEL: It is in the record.

l,rR FREDERICKS: liTo, it is not in the record.

]Im APPEL: You. are in the habi t of denying almo st anythi~g.

UR FREDERICKS: I appeal to the court ---

HR FORD: I ask the court to protect lrr Fredericks from

. remarks of c ouns el.

:MR APIEL: I have seen you deny things that are absolutely

true, both of you.

T,rR FORD: I ask that the court protect us from remarks of

that sort from counsel.

MR ROGERS: In order that the court may take some action

about it, I showed to the ~itness, if your Honor pleases,

an interview with Mr Fredericks, and I took the pains to

s end a man to Ur Fredericks to find out if the interview

were genuine, and he came back and reported to me it was.

l'1'oVl, something may be done vrith me, too, because I stand

beside Mr Appel upon it.
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1
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15
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MR. FREDERICKS. There is absolutely nothing-- 2948 I

MR • ROGERS. "He better come through ", and when 1 saw that

in the paper 1 sent a man to the Diatl1ct Attorney's office

to find out if the interview were correct and 1 was told it

was correct. Now, if anything is to be done 1 stand beside

Mr. Appel.

MR. FREDERICKS. Now, may it please the court, 1 would like,

if possible, to do rrlY share towards conducting this trial

9 in an orderly way. Mr. Rogers has stood here and made

10 statements of what he did out of court, what he says he did,

~1 and has made them, 1 don't know, 1 cannot see any other
i
112 purpose, 1 cannot see any proper purposes for making them.

/13 There is no proper purpose for making them. My objection

14 to this matter is that there is no evidence before this
.

115 cour t that 1 gave, ever gave any in terv iew to the paper,
I
:16 there is no such evidence. Counsel read an extract from

17 the paper, purporting to be an interview with me and asked

18 the witness if he had ever seen it. It was not introduced

. -19 in eVidence, it is not evi9-enCei it is not before this
l

of the,necessities and occasions arising in this case.

court in any way, shape or form. That is my objection.

THE COU:RT. Gentleren, the insistence of counsel in being

heard upon theae matters does aome violence to my senae

The court was quite ready to rule upon this objection,

assuming that the question was as the court thought it was.

And the court called for the reading of the question.

gentlemen, 1 am going to aay
26
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ment, Mr- Ford here, a Ii ttle while ago, in getting up and

calls for the reading of the question that that closes

just wait until the question is read.

MR • APPEl.. Yet, your Honor, we have to complain once in a

saying, "I sent for that book and told him to send it to
! I

Mr. Lawler for this reason and that reason--does your Honor

think that is a proper statement corning from the prosecu-

In thE par-the controversy until the question is read.

tic~lar instance i'lr. Appel is a serious offender against I

that rule. 1 called for the reading of that question and I

that wae the time to read the queetion and the remark I

here, whether proper or improper, should not have been made

until the question was read. It is a physical in~ossibility

for us to make a record in this case unless counsel will

while to the court, and it is done here in your presence,

it is done all the time, it is done prejudicial to the

rights of this defendant time and time and over and over aga n

Does your Honor contend for a moment that this man's atate-

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

20 word without being under oa th '? Are we bound by his s ta te-

19 tion'? Is he upon the witness stand?

21 men ts?

Are we to take his

And it is done time and time and over and over agai

22 ,and your Honor allows them to do that. Was it proper for

23 this man; ;',!;. Fredericks, to come up here the other day and

24 accuse lIiJ'. Darrow of haVing hypnoti zed a witness upon the

Isn't that the highest class of misconduct onthe25 stand?

26 part of the District Attorney or anyone else?
I

I

Yet, the
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incident went by without even a word of admonition against

the remarks of this kind,. agains t Mr. Freder icks. Mr. Darrow

here was portrayed as a hypnotic before this jury, he says,

"We know this man, we know what we are talking about", and i

there was not a single word of admonition from this court as]

against r,h. Fredericks. I

lffi. FREDF.:RICKS - 1 am perfectly willing to admi t, your

Honor, that both sides have been offending along that line

and I will be very glad indeed to cut out our end of it if
<

the other side will only cut out theirs, and 1 believe 1

see that the court is going to compel both sides to cut

it out.

MR" APPEL _ Let the caur t speak for i taelf •

THE COURT'. There is no way by which this cour t can read

the minds of counsel on either side or to anticipate what

ei ther ar e going to say I but the r ule that when the cour t

calls for the reading of the question that that calls for

silence on the part of all of counsel until the question is

read must be fo"llowed by both sides or we will never get

a proper record. 1 call upon counsel and request them to

assist the court in that very proper duty, seeing that the

record is made here. Th::.t is all. Now, read the ques-

tion, ':,!r. Repor ter •

THE COURT- The objection is sustained.

MR • ROGERS. Before your Honor rules upon that does

Honor hold that 1 cannot ask this Witness if he has



Am I forestalled or foreclosed on that
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the District Attorney

with them, wh er e they

the prosecution?
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or Mr. Lawler, who appears to be actin~

~ight get documents connected with

4 with a witness who demands immunity?
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There, if your Honor please, is a

Y,TIy, in thisv ery court room, from the mouth

perhaps on that bheory you are enti tl ed to

defendant at that.

get this ~itness away out from certain ~lestions which

sentence ~hich is nothing in the world but an effort to

the question.

your Eohor has just, by intimation, said that I might

ask. °It is absolute misconduct in a criminal casej It

sometimes by personal criticism, but never have I stood
as

here and attempted to state anything"detrimental to the

oU~ht not be permitted. It is an out:!:'age upon ourdecency

we were working on ours, and frequently our lines crossed,

and ~e helped ooch other. Now, that is the situation.

and upon our rights to allow the District Attorney to s

up and say, IIOh, our lines crossed, and I yrill ans\V'er

tho question", that I ':,ras about to ask thescWI:l.!<tIrl:;ess'/lla~y,

United States government were working on their case fLYld

THE COURT: Now, let him answer the question.

MR ROGERS: Now, if your Eonor please, I may offend

of this very vfitness, that Mr W. Joseph Ford asked him to

THE COURT:"

send the code that has been introduced in this case to him,

ins t ead of to Fo rd, and it comes into the court room from

Ford's hands.

MR FREDERICKS: In order that there may be no misunder-

standing on that, I stated early in this case that the

3 JJR ROGEP.s: II

;'\
1 THE COURT: You are G'.c ting on the theory that Mr Lawl er is

2 incorporated

4

5
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worst misconduct I ever saw in a court room by telling

and he wants to give the \vi tness the tip as to hoy! to

And Runs is not in this

You want an answer to the question?

aft er Darrow and Gomp ers. No!

case, I never saw anythi:ng that v:ould.

TP.E COURT: Do you wtmt an answer to this question?
!

HR FDGERS: I will tcke ananswer. I know what it will

this witness what to say with resp~t to how documents

thing. But, yet, our lines crosse·d, and they COImlli t the

assiGn it as misconduct. If that ryould not l~verSe the

they say so right here in the court room; they are not

lined", and yet, they say the'.1 are not after Dafrow and

Gompers; they are vrorking toe eth er. Oh, no I And yet,

answer it. I had a eros s- examination outlined, and th e

outline is absolutely useless now, because he said, "Oh,

that it ought not to be permitted.

THE COUnT:

CaL"1e into this court room. VhY, I never heard such an

outrag~ous thing in all my life, and, if your Honor please,

I Yrent through San Francisco where they had some. And I

here and states what he would like to have the witness say,

if your Honor please, it has never been heard of before in

we ':rere ',"forking together for a long time and it 7,as ou t-

any case where I have practiced, and I say to your Honor

HR lmGERS: I don, t care; the answer to th e question has

been given by the District Attorney, and it is absolutely

. useless to cross-examine '.7hen th e 1TI.ttrict attorney sits

.1
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United States Government is interested in this case;

FR APPEL: We ask th e cou rt to say to the District At-

jury y:hat is back of this prosecution.

of California is interested in prose-

torney, he must not make statements of fact. We ask your

entitled to that much protection by the court, and we

that they are backing this case, that they ','fish to have

this man convicted. They have nothing to do with this

demand it. We dontt propose to have the District Attorney

tell this jury and tell this cmdience here that the

not only the stat ('

Ho:q.or to instruct this jury to disregard them. ,\'!e are

case, your Honor, and he tries to r:ive the jury that im­

pression -- G entltmcn of the jur'.{, he mi'1ht as vlell state,

,cuting Darrow, but the whole United States Government is

interested in prosecuting Dafrow. He wIDlts to show the

( 1
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MR. FREDERICKS. t would like to say a word, your Honor, andl

it wont take ~~ long and it wont be vehement, but I think

it will--

THE COUR T. If you think it is necessary. The cour t has

very clearly in mind what occurred.

MR. FREDERICKS. There has been no misconduct on the par t

of the District Attorney. There '~as been no effort to

instruct anyone. Now listen: A question was asked of this

Witness and your Honor With the idea in mind possibly

tha. t :~r. Law 1er had no connect ion or no thing to do--was not

involved in any way With the prosecution, had ruled on it.

Then an argun,ent came up which called the Court's atten­

tion to the fact that Mr Lawler, possibly, had something

to do with. it, and in order tta t the cour t migh t rule wi th

intel1igence--with the knowledge of the facts,to assist

the court, withont the slightest idea of the witness, 1

made a statement of the situationfor the assistance of the

court. 1 made no statement of fact ··ilhatever, a statement

that has been made tefore, it is a statement that counsel

has contended for, and 1 supposed 1 was adrritting something

that they wanted to show. Now, 1 am not in the habit of

tipping Witnesses nor saying other undignified things in­

tentio~ally, at any rate.

TEE COURT. There has been a great deal of discussion here,

and counsel for the defense states that there has been SOIDe

statements of fa'Jt wade by the District At~6rney.



We demand of your Honor to s tate to the jury

1

2

3

are the best jUdges whether there was any statement

facts made, if so, they will disregard them.

MR • APPEL.

2~
of I

I

~.I.,.

j.1 • .i. 0

it ought not to be read

do you know whysir,Now,Q

mus t conduc t this tr ial, and when he said that the lines I

crossed and they were helping each other, they in ter eo te I
aye.

in this rna tter together, that is what he meant. 1 say,

MR. FORD. If it isn't proper

MR. ROGERS.

THE COURT' The District Attorney repeated a staterr.ent he

made early in the trial. 1 do no~ regard it as a statement

offact.

your Honor, it is a statement of fact and it is your Honor

to decide this matter.

MR • ROGERS. Then, if your Honor please, if it isn t t a

statement of fact it is a statement of untruth, one thing orl

the other, and 1 ask that it be read. Read it, please.

MR. FREDERICKS. That is for l the Cour t to det0rmine.

again.

MIL ROGERS. VIe are going to take a rul ing on this . May 1

have the statement of the District Attorney made to the

Witness and to the court read?

TPE COURT· Read it.

(Statement of the District Attorney referred to read by the

repor ter. )

4 . there were statements of fact and they must disregard them.

It isn't left to them, it is left to this court; this court

26
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ask you for that code ins tead of Mr. Ford?

of the fact that he asked me to send t't:e code to Y.r. Lawler.

No, sir.AFord?

1 do not r emen:ber oute ide

1 t is in Chicago.

1twas a telegram.

A

A

A

A Ten days, 1 should think.

l.awler told you--Mr.

yes, sir.A

Do you knoVl why iJr

A telegram?

Do you know wha t it said?

Have you got the letter from !\';r.

Have you it there, then?

Now, did he as k yeu to s end any 0 ther documen ts to illr.

How long pr ior to it?

Q

send it to l,awler ins tead of sending it to him?

Q Do you know the date of tl:e telegranl? A No, air.

Q Do you know approximately its time of sending? A About

a month ago.

Q

Q Wh':tt did you do with it?

Q

Q

Q

Q About a month ago? A Yes, sir.

Q Since this case st.ctrted? A No, sir; it waa prior to

tte a tar t ing 0 f th is cas e •

~ Are you sure that it was not after this case had com­

menced? A My recollection is that it was prior to it.

Q

Q

La'lvler? A No, sir •

Q Did you send any other dooun-en ta to ~,(. Lawler? A No, siL~1!A. •

Q rid you give any other documenta to ~1r. Lawler? A No, s ir •

Q Did_ you give any other docun,ents to anybody connected

Wi th the prosecution 7 A No, air •

Q Did you send rror e than orce code? A No, sir.

Q Is that the code that has been irtroduced here? A

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9
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11
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sir"

It is not an answer, does not even come closeMR. ROGERS"

TITE COURT- I think you can answer tt:at question more fUlly,

to being an answer.

tion of ~!Jr. Darrow, did you not? A 1 s cn tit becaus e 1

he answer edt

~ Answer me, please.

MR· FREDERICKS· That we subn;it is an answer, giveE} the

was asked to send it.

reason why he sent it.

Q And that is the only document that you ever sent before

the case con:menced, to anybody connected one way or

'IV i th the prosBcution of this case? A Yes, sir.

Q Or the prosecution of the Federal cases? A Ye~ sir ..

Q And you sent it for the purpose of aiding the proseo~-

A No, sir ..

MR • FREDERICKS. The q W 6 tionis why di d you send it and

A Yes, sir.

MR "ROGERS. Q You cannot give any better answer than that.

Mr. parrington"

MR - ROG~~RS. No, no.

THE COURT. That was not the question" Read the question.

(Last q,uestion and answer read by the reporter.)

THE COURT. IS that the best answer you can make to that

ques tion?

25

26
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1 Q And you knew it was going to be used against Mr Dafrow,

2 didn't you? A I thought it \VQuld figure in the case.

3 Q And that is the reason you sent it? A I sent it be-

4 cause I was asked to .send it.

5 Q. You thought it would be used in the prosecution of]Ir

6 Darrow, c;nd. that is the ret'\son you sent it; isn't that true?

7 MR FREDE1I CKS: Obj ected to upon the ground it has been

8 asked and ~nswered.

9 THE COURI': Obj ection sustained.

10 MR ROGERS: Exc eption.

United States Government?

~sked and answered. He said \"fby he sent it.

of lvfr Darro':'l, why did you send it to 1Ir Lawl er of the

Q When you thought it vrould be used in the prosecution

Obj ected to upon the ground it has been

A \7i tness who demands immunity c an be in ter-jffi ROGERS:

1,fR FREDERICKS:

16

11

121

13

14

151
I

17 regated.

18 THE COUR?: Overruled •.

19 A I sent it because l'i!r Ford ~.sked me to send i.t.

20 JrR HOGERS: Knowing that it was to be used in the prose-

21 c~tion of lir Darrow you had in mind, did you not, that

22 he was being prosecuted in the state court and thi:.t Jrr

23 Lawler "was in the United States court; huh?

fIR FORD: If the court please, VIe object upon the ground

it has been fully answered. If I requested that it be

26 sent to Hr Lawler, I was the one ';'[ho Imew the reasons w

24
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I did so; not this witness. This witness has answered

repeatedly that he did it mere]y because I requested him

to do so.

THE COURT: The objection is it has elready been asked

and answered?

MR FORD: I don t t ,:fish to violate. ~my rul es -- I know why

I asked him to send itto HI' Lawler and it isn't the reason

counsel is insinuting.

I>![R APPEL: We obj ect to the statement of counsel; he is

not a witness on the stc.nd, he is lec,dintS the jury to

believe he had good reasons other than 'He have drav:n

from the witness, drmilIl from sworn testimony, cmd itis

unfair to the defend<::mt;' it is prejudicial to the rights

of the defendant. It is Ie tting the jury rec eive unswo In'

statements here before them which is not pel~itted b~ the

code, and we ask that the jury- be admonished to pay abso­

lutely no attention to the statements of Mr Ford.

]f.R FREDERICKS: I ':/Quld like to state in ::::-epl:l that the'

ergument of HI' ]'ord was not a statement of fact, 'but '.vas

the ssne as asking him if I sent it. The argument would

have been just as strong as though the request had been

signed by John Doe. Joh Doe ~culd be the one that would

be the one that ','{oul d ImOYI '::by it was sent; that is the

argu..'uent.

1lR APPEL: Then label him John Due.

TEE COURT: Gentlemen, I ~as quite ~ell
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1 as the obj ection vIas made that the obj mtion shoull be

2 sustained.

,3 Jim P.PPEL: How about our request for your Honor to inst ruct

4 the jury. Does your Honor ~efuse to instruct the jury~?

5 THE COUii.T: There ':,ras no statement of fact.

6 Irs. APTEL: Your Honor refuses to instruct the jtuy.

7 THE COURT: Yes sir.

8 l·fR APPEL: F;x:ception. And \7e viill takre occasion to an-

9 swer those statements of fact, because the court ~~ll not

10 protec t us.

11 TEE COUHIJ.': If you ':Jill c all the court's attention to any

statement of fact --

J'iR EOGERS: Couns el says t here are re",sons ot her than

those that are bei1'l~ insinue,ted. If that is not a state-

ment of fact --

16 THE COURT: I think you are right. That escaped my at-

quiry. Ged lemen of the jury, ~ou heard. the statement

17

18

t ention in the argur:1ent. That was the purpose of my in-

19 purported to be c. statement of fact from th e District At-

20 torney just recited by }{r Rogers. You viill disregard

21 any statement of fC'.ct r.s having any bearing on this case

22 what ever.

23 ]",TR rtOGERS: Have you been shovm any othel' d<lldmnents and

26 Hn. ROGERS: A wi tness "rho demand.s immuni ty

24

25

asked to look tllem o"mer before testifYing here?

JJR FRrnEHICKS: That is obj ected. to --
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1 gated.

2 HR FRKDERICKS: It is so general.

3 HE ~OGERS: Dealings with the District Attorney's office)

4 that is .c;iving him innnunity.

5 HR FO"RD: We are not~iving him immunity. We obj ect to

6 the statement -- to a statement of that kind being made.

7 It is not in evidence that t.his witness is testifyiI1~

8 under or is testifYing for immunity. He stated that he

9 is not.

10 THE C01TriT: Obj ection overruled.

Jm 110 GERS: I would like to show it to th e vri tn ess and

lr-R PDGERS: I d emend it.

have him identify it.

~here? A In the District Attorney's

Have you got that statement) gentlemen?

When? A Yeste}'day.

t~en? A Saturday.

VJhat documents were the;y? A It was a purportedQ

die tag raph statement.

(Last question read by the reporter'.)

offic e.

A yes sir.

lTR FREDERICKS: You vlon' t .'1 et it nO'll.

Q.

A Read the question.

I,TR FRFnERICKS: Vie are trying our end of the case.

IiIR HOGERS:

1m FREDERICiill: Would you?

. Ifl:RROGERS •
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1 MR APPEL: we ask an order of the court to produce it.

2 ER FREDEHICKS: The cou It \evill not make any such order.

3 HR .ROGERS: The court "vill have to make such an order in

what that is. That is all there is to it.

you will or won,t; it is a question of 'what the law

entitles the defense to in this case. now, let's see

Now, I demand them.

stand and under cross- ex:ar.'1.ination, he was shown a document

in the District Attorney's office.

I have a right to th em.

view of the statement of the vrithess, since he left the

MR FREDERICKS: ~ell, you won't get them.

Ttlli COURT: Gentlemen, this is not a question of whether

]JR FREDERICK..S: I don, t think so.
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MR. FREDERICKS. Suppos e 1 had

a thousand differen t things.

2964

shown the witness anything,

3 THE. COURT. Well, the burden is on the defendant to show

4 what the law is. Let's Bee what it is.

5 MR. ROGERS. 1 wilJ lay the foundation.

6 THE COURT. WhiJe you are. looking that' up we mrght take a

7 recess.

8 ME. ROGERS. 1 ha,'e to ] ay a founda tion •

9 THE COURT. Gentlerren of the jury, bearing in mind your

10 former adrr:onition, we will take a recess for ten minutes.

11

12 (After recess.)

13 MR. ROGERS. Beforerthe matter is presented 1 must lay a

14 further foundation, Sir •

. 15 I TFE COURT. All rigr..t, go ahead.

16 I MP. POGERS. Q On Saturday afternoon you said you were

17 as ked to look over sorre shee ts of paper? A yes, air.

18 Q At the District A~torneyt6 office, is that correct?

19 A Yes, sir.

20 Q Are those the only docun!ents you ever have been asked to

21 look over by tr.e District Attorney ior any of his deputies

22 or representa tives? A Yes, sir.

23

24

25

26

ledge of their contents, weren't you? A
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1 what was in it, there was two or three sbeets there, that

2 is all 1 I 00 ked at that.

3 Q How many sheets were there altogether? A 1 don't know,

4 there was probably 30 or 40, something like that, 1 didn't

5 count them.

6 Q Were they in typewriting? A Yes, sir.

7 Q And while you were glancine; over then, did yeu read the

8 contents of any of them?· A Only as 1 have said, 1 could

9 not make it out.

10 Q, You could not make it out? A 1 could not make eu t the

11 senoe of it.

12 I Q You could not make ou t the sense of it? A Yes, sir.

13 Q You mean by that that it was uninteligible or that it

14 was miswritten or-- A uninteligible.

15 Q That is, the words did not n;ake sense? A Yes, sir.

16 Q How much further did you look into it than two or three

17 sheets? A 1 didn't look any further.

18 Q Did you tell them it wae uninteligible to you? A No,

19 sir • .

20 Q. Then, what reason did you give them for not looking

21 further? A 1 gave them no reason. 1 jus t threw th e

22 paper back and went tome.

Q Thr e'll the paper 'back and went home? A Yeo, sir.

Q. Did you tell them--did they ask you to look through

all of the sheete or just the two or three? A

frol,t two or three sheets.

23

24

25

26
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1 Q And what request was made of you when you were asked

2 to look through them? A Just to look through them, to see

3 if 1 could make anything -out of them ..

4 Q Yes, to see if you could make any:thing out of them.

5 A Yes, sir.

6 Q. Would you know those sheets if yeu saw them again?

7 A 1 didn t t mar k them, 1 don't know.

8 Q, pave you any idea what was onthem 1 A No, sir.

9 Q Well, now, at the request of Mr. Foster, of the Erectors"

10 Association, you were requested to get Mr.. Darrovl to call

11 on you at your hotel, v{erentt you? A No, sir.

12 Q You were wi th ;,~r. Fos ter a part of tr..e time vihi] e some

13 alleged dictagraph stuff was being taken, weren t t you?

14 A No, sir ..

15 Q Do you know where Mr. Foster was at that time1 A No, sir.

16 QDid you know he was inthe 'closet of your room?

17 he was not.

18 Q Pow long before thi6 alleged dictragraph stuff VIas

19 taken had you seen ;',1r. Foster? A 1 saw him on the first

20 day.

And how long after the 14th of February was the alleged

21

22

Q

Q

What first day? A On the 14th of February.

23 dictagraph stuff taken? A It started on that day •
•

24 Q The alleged dictngraph stuff was supposed to be con-

25

26

versaticns between you and 1-1r. Darrow, wasn t tit? A

sir.



~ Mr. Lawler '/ .A Yes sir .
Q You refer to l,tr. Oscar Lawler? A Yes, sir.

Q Did you tell "~r. Oscar I.awler that you and 11r. Darrow
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1 Q Did you and Mr. Foster have a conversation about dicta-

2 graph stu:f? A No, sir.

3 Q Did you and Mr. Fos ter have a conversation about ;!lr.

4 Darrow calling at your room? A No, sir.

5 Q Did you and ;,:r. Foster have any conversation whatever abOl

6 ~1r. Darrow being at your room in the Hayw,alld Hotel?

7 A No, sir.

8 Q Did you tell him he would be there? A 1 told Mr.

9 Lawler.

10

11

12

13 would be at your room? A Yes, sir_

14 Q Did :.1r. Lawler talk wi th you about the presence of any

15 alleged dictagraphin your room? A Yes, sir •

16 Q Then an arrangement was made between you and Mr. Lawler

17 that Mr. Darrow should call at your room and that the dicta-

18 graph should be there? A Yes, sir.

19 Q Did you read Mr- Fosterts interview in the paper since

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

this case came on and since you' have been here, in which

!~!r. Foster said, "1 will convict Darrow with my dictagraph",

meaning Foster?
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1 TER FREDE1TICKS: That is obj ec t ed to as assumirl:.1:S a fac t th at

2 is not in evidence, that Ur Foster ever made any such

3 statement to the newspaper.

4 IfR ROGERS: yes, it is in evidence in this case that he

5 did.

6 MR FREDERICKS: No, it is not; I beg your pardon.

7 1:TR ROGERS: Very well. It makes no difference whether

8 it is in evidenc e or not; I asked him if he read it.

9 MR FREDERICKS: Let us see what the question is.

10 TEE COURT: Rea d the question.

( Quest ion read.)

HR FREDERICKS: Our obj ec tion was that no e videnc e l1r

13 Foster ever made such a statement in the paper.

14 UR P,OGERS: \'Tell) then) '.'Ie ':Jill send for the pe,per.

J'£R FHEDERICKS :;.

15 f

16 I

17

TEE COUHT:

ment ll ?

The qnestion is lIDid he read suc h a state-

Oh, if that is the question, that is dif-

18 ferent.

19 TEE. COURT: All right.

20 A yes sir.

21 HR HOGERS: And do you say you did not see l~r Foster while

22 he was here in Los Angeles. A I saw :Mr Foster here, yes

sir.

being taken? A A little later.

At about the time this alleged dictagraph stuff was

How many times? A Three or four times.

Q

23

24

25

26
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vJi11 be stricken out.

came out he re? A Twic e.

Mr Lawler.

Mr FOster himself told you he v~s representinglIR EOGERS:

MR ROGEPE: It is preliminary.

THE COU?T: Obj ec tion overrul ed.

the Erectors' Association) didn,t he?

l1R FOED: We obj ect to that as irrelevant and innnaterial,

not in anywise tending to impea~h the testimony of the

yJi tn ess on that subj ec t.

THE COUHS-': Leave it) if it is there. It is only that it

is already asked and ,..nswered) cmd if he has answered

Q Whe~e? A Once in my office and once in the hotel with

THE COURT: Obj ec tion sus tain 00.

MR FORD: There is an answer in there) and I suppose that

Q Did you sec him in Chice.go before you came out here?

A yes sir.

Q. How many times did you see him in Chicaq;o before you

it twice) it does no ham.

:UR ROGERS: Let us hear the answer) tl you have it, Hr

Petermichel. (.Pnswer read.)

Q, Wi th whom? A Mr Lawler.

Q You know Ur Foster is the alleged investigator for the

Erectors' Association) don,t you? A I heard it --

1m FREDERICKS: We obj ec t to that on the ground it he-s

already been asked and answered.
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1 .A yes si r.

tifi es that conclusion. I may be in error.

thing in evidence; I am asking him.

lJR FREDERICKS: That is obj ected to as assuming a f~ct

not in81idence. I don,t think the witness' answer jus-

Read the question rgain.

Objection overruled.

The question does not ne od to assume any-

TF.E COURT:

Well, then, before youc<.'me out here to Los Angeles

THE COUH.T: Re ad it.

(Question read.)

into a room wh ere JIr Foster, among others, might put a

dic to~graph?

THE COURT:

you and Hr Foster had talked over your getting Mr Darrow

ijR HOGERS: Now, when you saw him in Chic C''tCSo, was th e al­

leg.ed dictagraph stuff mentioned to you? A yes sir.

]flR HOGERS:

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
I

12 I

13

14
I

15 I

161

a conversation.

Q And that was in Chicago before you cane out here?

wi th lrr f Lawler and lfcr Fost er about get ting l~r Darrow into

a room 'Crith you '."1here was a dictagraph? A There was such

And. you cgreed to it? A Yes sir.

To .c;et evidenc e ag ains t 1iIr Da::-row? A

VTas :r.{r FOster present? A yes si r.

yes si r.

Well, then, the conversation was, as a matter of fact,

The conversation Ylas held Wj:th lfr Layfl er.

Q

Q

Q

A

A17
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1 to get evidence that I was not connected with this jury

2 bribing, to get him to commit himself to that.

Then, it was C'.greed you should ask Darrow certain

is that it.

3

4

5

Q You wanted him to convict him to excavate yourself,

A No sir.

6 questions, wasn't it? A No sir.

7 Q It was agreed you should talk wi th Darrow aLout cer-

8 t ain thi~gs? A yes si r.

9

10

11

12

13

That was while u r FOster, the Investigator for the

Erectors' Association v-as present, vraBll't it? A yes sir.

Well, now, vnlen you ryere talking with ill' Foster, the

il1vestisator for the Erectors' Associe.tion, you had C'n

agreement with him that you would procure a room in Los

La\Tfl ere

VR FO::m: I do not think it is a prop3 l' question.

How much did you get for that? A Nothing. lry repu-

A Itis right here.

Where is it?

You think you got your reputation back? A yes sir.

tation back that I lost by comi~g out ~ith Darrow.

Q Well, in the presence ofJrr Foster, the ingestigator

for the Erectors' Association? A yeS sir.

Q

Q

TEE COURT: It is not proper.

ITR HOGEns: ':fere you told vrhat

MR FOHD: That is obj ec ted to --

.Angeles and send for lfr Darrow, did you not? A lio sir.

Q You had em agreement in his presenc e? A With Hr

14 I

i

15 I
i

16 I

171
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1 got him into a room ,vhe re th e dictagraph was to be? A In,

2

3

4

5

6
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12 I
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a general YH3.Y, yes si r.



Q Who told you what to say to Mr. Darrow? A Ii,. Lawl::~3 .T
Q. Did :vlr. Foster participate in the conversation at all?

A No, sir.

Q Do you know, then, why he was present? A 1 do not know.

Q Just you three were present, though, eh? A There was

a thir d gen tIeman, 1 don't know his name. He 'v'l as a lawyer,

. 1 don t t know his narn e.

Q VIao i t Dr ew? A No, s ir •

Q Was it an attorney for the Erec tore t Assoc iation?

A 1 don't know who the gen tl en;an was.

Q Don't you know, a.s a matter of fact, it was the attor­

ney for the Er ec tor B t Assoc ia tion and the Steel True t

that was present? A No, sir; 1 do not.

Q You don't know who he was, though? A No, sir,.l never

saw him before and never saw him since.

Q Was he introduced to you? A He was.

Q What was he called? A 1 dontt remember. He didn't

take par t in the conversation at all.

Q Did Foster take part in the conversation at all?

A No, sir.

Q Well, describe this anonywous gentleman? A Be vias

tall and thin, a man tha t would weigh abou t 160 pounds,

sandy qomplexion.

Q Do you know I::rew? A No, sir.

Q The attorney for tr.e Erectors' Association? A sir.

Q Never have seen him? A No, sir.
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1 Q Heard of him? A 1 have heard of him.

2 Q Does that name strike you as being similar to the name

3 that he was called by by Mr. Foster the investigator for the

4 8rectors' Association? A That is not the name. If that

5 was ~he name 1 vvould remember it, because 1 am familiar wit

6 tha t name.

7 Q, Did they tell you where t1'.is anonymous attorney lived,

8 whetter at Chicago, Indianapolis or whereabouts?

9 1m. FREDERICKS. That is objected to as assu~ing that the

10 attorney who was there present was present arj,~:mymous~,y.l

11 as the witness's testirr,ony is--

12 MR. ROGERS. He is at present anonymous.

13 THE COURT. Counsel's explanation of the use of the word

14 "anonymou8 "--

15 MR. FREDERICKS' I will withdraw the objection.

16 A What is the ques tien ?

17 (Question read.)

18 A 1 have an idea, but lannot positive--that he was a San

19 Fr ancisco man.

20 Q. It could not, by any peradventure, be Francis J. Heney?

21 A Who?

Q Mr. Heney? A No, sir, that wa.s not the name.

Q What VI as Fos ter doing there? A 1 don 1 t--

Q When-- A--pardon me , 1 thought you finish ed--

Q --1 had. 1 asked you what Fos ter was doing there

22

23

24

25

26 this foregathering bet'Neen you and Mr. FOB ter and the
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mous attorney, possibly from San Francisco?

know.

Q Did they meet you by appointment? A No, sir.

Q Just happened so? A No, sir.

Q Eow did it come about? A ;'f.r. LaWler called up my office

and asked me to come to the hotel,

Q To what Hotel? A The Sherman House.

Q Did he tell you whom you were to meet? A No.

Q Then the me etir:~g at the ho te 1 was befor e the meeting

at the office? A 1 don't understand that question.

Q 1 thought y'cusaid you met Mr. Foster and Mr. Lawler a bout

this dictagraph stuff twice? A No, sir.

Q You did not? A No, 1 think, what I mean--

Q You met, Foster tviice? A Yes, sir j yes, sir.

MR. FORD· Letthe wi tness answer; he started to say whom

he met tWice.

A 1 met Foster twice, but not Mr. Lawler, in Chicago.

NoR. ROGERS· Q Where did you meet Foster? A At the

office the first time.

Q Alone? A Yes, sir •

Q, Was that before or subsequent to your meeting at the

hotel? A It was prior to.

Q How. long before you met Foster at the hotel was it that

you met Foster at your office aloIe? A A week or ten

days.

Q. What is t1:at? A A week or ten days •
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Q was there anybody present when you and Foster fore­

gathered at the office? A We did not foregather at the

office.

Q. Was there anybody present when you and Mr. Foster, the

investigator for the Erectors' Association, met at your

office? A No, sir.

Q, How long did you and he remain together at your office?

A We did not remain together at all.

Q Did,he talk to you on that occasion? A Just spoke and

wh en 1 found out who he was 1 told him 1 had no thing fur­

ther to say in the matter.

Q. You had nothing fur ther to say in the matter? A Yes,

sir.

Q And th en you met him a Ii t tIe later and had something

to say? A Not to him.

Q TIell, in his presence? A Yes, sir •

Q And in his hear ing? A Yes J B ir •

Q Did you object to his presence there with Mr Lawler

and this attorney for the steel trust?

MR • FREDERICKS. That is objected to as assuming a fact

not in evidence, that is, that there was any attorney for

the steel trust present.

TEE COURT. Obj ec tion sus tained •

k-rt. ROGERS. Q Did you object to the presence of 11ro Foste:;

the investigator for the Erectors' Association? A

Q Well, you had objected to talking to him at your

A Yes, sir.
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1 :Put you did not obj ec t to talking to him at the Sherman

2 House? A I did not talk to him ::.t the Sherman House.

3 Q. . But you talked in his pc esence and h ean ng? A yes

4 sir.

5 It Vias then cgreed what you would do '7hm you ca'TIe out

6 here? A yes sir.

Q. Who was goin~ to put th e dictagraph in? A Mr Lawler

told me he \70uld look after it.

7

8

9

10

Q.

Q.

And you agreed to do certain things? A Yes sir.

Did you have C:U'J;"lthing to do with the putting of that

Did you speak to the maid in the room about it?

That you didn't mention to any employe of the Hotel
, .

the pI' esenc e of any apparatus of ....viring in your

sir.A yes

A no si r.in?11

121
13 I Q.

I
A No sir.

14
I Q. Are you sure?

151
i Q.

16 II Hayward

17 I room? A yeS sir.

"used on him" -- it was done for the purpose of getting

the purpose of ~etti~g'him to talk so that the dictagrap~

'There I stood on this jury bribing matter.

That expression

Oh, just ·:!here you stood on this jury-bribing?

yes sir.

Now, then, whEn you got Darrow down there, it VIas for

ov

Q You C~1e here for that purpose? A

A

him in the re so that he ";7ould cl-eclare himself just

could be used on him? A No sir.

Q.18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



1 Q Then Foster and Lavrler \vere ';forking to save your

2 reputation; is t.hat it? A No sir. They \7anted to know

3 some other things.

4 Q 'Well,. then, you stood in on their learning some other

5 things? A yes sir.

the purpose of usi:ng this dicte.graph on him? A yes sir.

6

7

Q That is ,,[hat I asked you; you got him in there for

8 Q How many times did you p;et him in there"for the pnr­

9 pose of using this dictegraph on him? A Five times ---

10

11

121

four or five.

Q Four or five times; that was your intention?

sir.

A Yes

lrR FREDERICKS: That is obj ected to as argumentative.

IrR ROGEHS: Did you and Foste:' come on the sarne train?

order to come here for the s arne purpo ses? A I c arne when

t en tional?

Was what in-A

That you did not happ en to take the same train in

It took five times to save your reputation?

Was that intentional or otherwise?

lIo sir.

Q

Q

A

THE COURT: Obj ec tion sus tain ed.

Q

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

You knew that was not in ,csocx:1 faith; you kne:" it '.";as

V1ho sent for you'? A Hr Lawler. I ';,as served ...lith a

for the purpose of getting you out here to dictograph D-

federal sUbpo ena to com e out.

they sent for me; subpoenaed me.22

23

24

25

26
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1 row, didn't you? A I knew they served a subpoena; I

2 didn't question their motives, end I respond ed to th e

3 sU1:,Jpoena.

exarninati on.

for a conflusion of the witness as to the motive \vhich

Q How many times? A Once.

THE COURT: Obj ection sustained.

We obj ect to that as argumentative, calling

You Imew, as a matter of fa~t, that the spbpoena was

prompted the federal government, and not proper cross-

Q

bait the dictagraph with, at the expense of the United

States government, didn' t you?

a blind for the sole purpose of getting you out here to

HR ROGERS: Well, '!!hen you got out h ere on this dicta­

graph e:-:pedi tion, in response to a Federal SUbpoena, did

you testify befo re the Federal g rand jury? A yeS sir.

HR FORD:

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15 I
I

16 I

wasn't that it?

ME FORD: Done what?

}}ffi FORD: We obj ect to that on the ground he has stated

Bai ted the dictcgraph? A That ....."as after.

So, as a matter of fact, the subpoena was simply for

Aftervrards? A yes sir.

Q

How long? A Probably I vms in there half an hour.

Was t~~t before or after you had baited the dictagraph?

the purpose of getting you out here to use the dicta­

graph upon Darrow and then to be a ~~tness as a blind,

I?;R 30GERS:

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 that -- e:x:actly the sam.e question before.

2 TEE COURT: Obj ection sustc,ined.

3 MR .ROGERS : Exc ept ion.

4 Q Was there anybody in the room "rhen you h ad this

5 dictagraph dictagraphi:ng? A yes sir.

6

7

8

9

Q

Q

Q

Q

WhO? A Mr Darrow and myself.

Anyone else? A lifo sir.

Are you sure of that.? A yes sir.

Did you do any telephoning to :rr.r Darrow after the

10 dic t".,.S raphing had be (On done? A yes sir.

11 Q
I

12 I

131
14

Wha t telephone did you use? A I us ed the room tele-

phone, if I remember rightly.

Q Did you know that your conversation over the tele-

phone was listened to by five different people? A No

sir.

did yon? A lTo sir.

peopl e on it? A Ifo sir.

. gra:r',h stuff, "rhether intelligible or otherv!ise; it -:,as

shown to the witness, ",7hich he cmne ant here to ~ et

Then, you didn't know that you qat the ilook, too,

Larrow.

Q, Did you kno'w that you Vlere on an exchange 'vith five

Q Well, now, in this unintelli~ible dictagraph stuff
from

that you c eme out here toa,et .; Darrow, you have seen

in the District Attorney's office on Saturday? A yes sir.
.

1!.R HOGEP.8: Gentle:rnen, I de:rnand the production of the dicta-

15

161
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



1 JrR FREDERI:£'KS: .And we r efus e to Ie t you see it.

2981
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other side of the alleged document, and under the answer

made by the other side that they will not produce it, we

MR. APPEL. Your Honor, we denland under Section 1938 of

the Code of Civil Procedure, of the production by the

2982

, the' notice requir ed in that section wouldcontend that

be unavailing and 'we are not required to give notice

7 mentioned therein because the giving of that notice would

8 be in vain in view of:'the,:answer on the other side.

I 9
I
/10
i
ill
I 121

13

14 .

\ 15

ill-
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Section 1938 of the Code of Civil Procedure provides:

"If the writing be in the possession of the adverse party,
v

he must first have reasonable notice to produce it. If he

then fail to do so, the contents of the writing may be

proved as in case of its loss, but the notice to produce

it is not necessary where the writing is itself a notice,

but where it has been wrongfully obtained or withheld

by the adverse parties •. "
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right to have it here before ourselves; we have a

understands we have a right to inspect it, we have a

Your Ho~or

duce secondary evidence of the contents.

MR. APPEL- The writing is in tre hands of the other side ..

MR ...FORD. I t is in our hands ..

Now, we have a right, your Honor, to go into all the'

conduct of this witness, who appears here as a witness for

the prosecution; we have a right to show what part he has

taken in becoming himself a party not only as a wi tness

but as an aid in assisting, in producing evidence against

this defendant. If that is so, we have a right to see

MR. FORD· We admit that, and the law permits you to intro-

THE COUR T.. One at 'a time ..

and to show that to its fu1lest extent. We have a right

to show that he was a party to the manufacturing of evi­

dence, if it be so; we have a right to show he aided to

get evidence against this defendant in ord_er'to convict

him; we have a right to show to what extent he went in

dOing that, and in order ,to bring the evidence before the

jury we are entitled to bring in everything he manufactured

MR. FOHD. We will waive the sufficiency of the notice.

MIt • ArrEI,. You have waived it already when you say you

to prove its loss, to show that it is los t.

only way we could introduce evidence of its contents is

MR. APPEL. We have a right to shm'" what was done. The

wont produce.

,r1
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under the decision in the 132 Cal. the court says this:

THE COURT' What page, '.:r. Appel?

"Plaintiff offered and read in

The lease was in the

These pleadings were verified, and the

Now, we are entitled to this document and

T1:e objection is wi thout mer i t, for the reason

When called upon to produce it, he failed to do ao

r£R • ArrEL. rage 133:

the case.

that the facts stated in the cor..plaint, in regard to the

execution of tre lease and its contents were not denied

ion.

evidence.

of the pleadings.

lease, when proven , did not add anything to the admissions

in the answer.

eVidence, under Appellant's objection, a copy or duplicate

of the wr it ten leaa'(t, This is claime d to be err or, for the

reason that the lease,being in writing, was itself the best

in laying traps, if we can show tr_e extent to which he

has gone, we have a r i grt to argue that to the jury to show

his motives, to show wha t influenced him to tes tify againa t

the def_endant so that his motive lllay be taken into con -

to see it, we have aright to have it for the purpose of

cross-examining this witness as to the part he took in

laying a trap, and the worst kind of a trap for a witness

to lay. If your Fonor pleases, he cannot come here and

aSBume that he comes as a disinterested and iffipartial

witness to tell the truth, if we can show he is interested.

sideration, in view of all the circumstances of the

case, and his actions in refer-e:nreto his own relations to

1
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i
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evidence was admissible. And where the original lease

it is in the private box of Mre Ernss t Graves, who is now

William Graves, who was trying the case for

and 6 aid th at he had given it to Ernse t Graves, one of his

appellant, said that he did'not know where the lease is.

If the lease is in the possession of Graves and Graves,

attorneys.

sick in San Francisco'. It thus appears, that, when called

upon, appellant did not produce the lease. He did not

place his objection upon the ground that he had not had

reasonable notice to produce it. In such case tl:e

was not introduced the other party had a r ightto show

a copy 0 fit." .

! 4

I 5
I

6! I
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methods this witness entered into with others for the

the ei"idence of this witness; we have a right to show what

c er1!ing that document, 8nd the original, if your Honor

pleases, is shovm to be in the possession of the District

He says to you here, andAttorney, by his own admission.

produce it. Now, we cannot be depr~ved of the benefit of

that evidence if we choose to introduce it in evidence;

he says to this jury that he has it, and that ~e ~~ll not

2986

1
now, we have not got c, copy of it, your Honor, to produce I
here. We have not sot the oral statements of t'nyone con- I

I

I
I

i

we cannot be deprived of the inspection of it, even if ~~

do not introduce it in evidence. We have a right to

consider the paper, "\Yhatever it is in connection with

1

2

3

4

I 5
! 6
I
1-

I 7

"
! 8
!
~

.i 9
!

\~~
112
\
113
~

to show that the conduct of this witness in reference t

is not t rue, as this witness said, that it 'liaS for the

your Honor, that the paper is of such a character that it
I
I

I
purpose of clearing his own reputation and that it ~~s I

another purpoa e ; it was the purpose to manuf.ctur-e evidence I

through decoy means, throu~h false ass1l.mption of friend- I

ship on his part. It isa fraud propssed on the defendant~.
Eveidence of that kind, your Ho""".nor, does not Yreigh a feath I

that matter is of such a serious Character,

fraud, by deceit or trickery or connivcnce or SUbterfuge,

does not'l'veigh a feather's weight; but we have a right

er's weight egainst the defendant. Evidence obtained by

purpose of obtaining evidence; we have a right to show,

\
24
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show him docu~ents in order to enable him to refresh his

witness in the hands of the defense. In other '."Jords, '..;~

memolY concerning those matters stated therein. or to en-

. 2987 i

made I
your

the.m to give the weiqht ~hich his testimony alone merit

jury is entitled to look into for the purpose of

all of its attorneys, and that is a matter which this

have Co right to sho'."! not only his conduct, 'but ';:e have a

that this witness was still a witness of this court. a

sho,m to the witness. espooially so, in view of .the fact

righ t . to shov! the -':hol e conduc t of the P:"10S ecntion and

tion. to bring that matter out. Not only that. your Honor,

they have a right to show. your Honor please, what are the

doclunents, what are the contents of the~Titings which were

take a witness from the stand and take him to my office.

of docllr Jents; for what purpose? Hot for the purpose of

only show that by having all the evidence that was

leaving him as an impartial -..fitness, but for the purpose of

and manufactured at that time. and furthermore. if

~ivi:ng him impressions, that he may be further ena'bled

to answer the questions on cross-examination. If I should

a \vi tness on our side, and there shoy! him memorandums and

able him to asstune a better position upon the witness stand

Hon?r please, this witness was upon thestand, his cross­

examination had not been ended, he goes in to the District

AttOTIley's office, and there he receives the inspECtion

against the other side. they have a right. on cross-ex~lina-
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'.;'[e do not e.d..mi t ,-- but he claims, so

And your Hono r said, "Yes." Therefo re,

2988
1

and we ask for the production of that document.1

If your Honor please, in order that you m.ay

or, claims, rather

associated with the Hcnamara defense, therefore, he

far as his testimony goes, that he is em attorney at law,

ment, "You [;re noV! testifying nnder compulsion", and his

qnesti on of your Honor, "Then, do I rec eiv e innnuni ty '... for

claims to be an at to r};ley , spealdng as an attorney who

place, v[e find him to be C'n attorney at lalli, '..vho adIDits )

~hether he is an accomplice or not, he is an immunity

gained his infornation while acting in a professional

c apaci ty.

fore testifyin,g demanded the benefit of section 1324.

recognize several aspects of this matter. First, I call

and no more,

f'ul).y understand our position: my posi tion differs· slig;ht-

wi tness; he has rec eived an im.rnuni ty lJath. In the s econ d

He demanded in~unity. He refused to testi~J until he

ly from 1,[1' Appel's in some pc'.rticnlars. It is well to

YJ"hat I noV! say?"

your Honor's attention to the fact that this ':ritness be-

got it, and there appears in the I' ecord your Honor's state-
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14
i'r

5

6 in the McNamara case. In the next place he says that he

.i 7 has done cer tain things at. the behes t and the behoof of the
ii 8 prosecution, in other worde, he has become an agent of the
,

9 prosecution. He has become to that extent, whether he has

:10· received money or not 1 do not expect him to admit, whe-

, 11 ther he is being paid or not we don t t expect him to tell

I'12 the truth about, but nevertheless he is getting something

,13 for his tes timony, at leastJ inlnluni ty t at leas t, the

14 clearing of his so-called reputation. He is getting

15 something and he is doing something for the prosecution.

16 He is not only testifying, if your Honor please, he is

17 not going on the stand to answer questions, if U:e court

18 may look at it that way, but he is affirmatively acting

19 as a detective; He is affirmatively acting as a sneak

20 and a sleuth; he is affirmatively pretending to be a

21 friend of the defend3.nt and at the same time, according to

22 his tes timony, he is do ing it for th e purpose of affor ding

23 evidence to the other side, in other words, he is a tr ai tor

of the worst kind. Now, under those circun:stances we have

a rigrt to search him in every particular and in every

1 am an Irishman myself and proud of it, but sornetway.

24

25

26,
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them--

THE COTJRT. The witr..ess is still on the stand.

Under those circumstances his testimony

boun dB of decorum under tb e c ircums tances •

MR • ROGERS' Ifycur Honor Bees fi t to cr i ticise me for

1 wonder Why it is that the traitors of the world come

out of that tribe, but nevertheless he admits,; on the

oth"er e id e--

THE WITNESS. Traitor to the church?

MR. ROGERS. That he--

MR. FREDERICKS. That is not an argument on the law.

MR • ROGERS. Yes, it is.

THE cOtJRT. MI. Rogers, your argument is getting beyond the

the defendant.

MR • ROGF.RS. He admi ts, if your Honor pI ease, be came out

here to get Darrow into a room for the purpose of getting

DarrO"\"l dictagraphed, and we know what that means.

THE COURT. He admits those facts but your conclusions in

the vehenlent language you used 1 think is quite cut of

order at this time.

MR • ROGERS. Eu t 1 make no apology to him. If 1 have

offended your Honors decorum 1 apologize to your Honor,

is to be s if ted, ris tea tinlony is to be tr ied by every

touch-stone on proof on cross-exanlination, ooing not onl

an agent of the prosecution, being not only a hierling 0

that is all. Now, if ycur Honar please, he corres out here

for the express purpose of doing son:e act or thir..g agains t22

23
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25

26
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to get evidence under thoa e circun;stances, Il your Honor

please, if you will take a recess for a few moments 1 e2Il

show you the books, so many books that your Honor couldn t t

see over the top of them on your desk, trat a Witness of

that kind may be searched clear to his CODse iene e, if he

has one; can be searched all the way through and up and

please, that this evidence will be admissible if produced,

because 1 believe it to be thoroughly ~reliable, after

fr iend, haVing admitted that, now, he says that what was

said there was taken down. 1 dontt believe, if your Honor

tha t he ca.me her e for the purpose of indue ing Darrow, by

deception, by deceit, by fraud, if so you may call it, to

corr.e to his room as his friend and talk to him as his

down. Now, then,' having admi tted, if your Honor please,

said while he was talking to the man With whorr. he had

assoc iated, at the sarr.e time be ir..g under employment of

many experiences. We W ill not discuss that at this time,

that affects another Question, but wha.t. he said While

he was in th:lt room with Mr. Darrow, what he said while he

was pretending to be 1~r. rarrow's friend, what he said while

he was ,taldng hinl by the hand in !;is own room, what he

someone else, what he said, then we have the right to,

',ve have t1:e r 19h t to go into 1t •

j 3
1

41
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{'I . the prosecution in one sense of the word, being not only
I
)2 one of their men, being not only one of their witnesses, bU~

I

he .is pretending a t the SaILe time to be a fr iend of the

defendant, and by means of deceit and pretention, ende':lvors
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r-~

j 1 MR FORD: GO ahead. VTe are not stoppil1g you.,
I 2 liB. HOGERS: NOYI, then, they claim to have shovm him fo l'
,

~3 some purpose or other while he was under cross-eocamination,

;;4 and at least, knoYlin8 from the one question I asked, which

i 5 may have been a mi stake on my part, but from the one

j6 qu estion I asked on Saturday, "Do you know Fast er~ th e dic-
~

1,7 tagraph man, \,;hich I didn't say, but he Imew "fhat I meant,
~

;8 they took him up th ere Saturday afternoon and shovled him,
19 these die tag raph sheets. Under tho se condi tions, if your

10 Honor please, he having talked, and it havin?; been t alcen

il dovm, he having talked, md it havins; been taken dO\VIl, if

~2 so it may be I don't know that it may be, but at least

13 they contend to -- I have a right, for the purpose of

14 fJearching this v/itness as to '.'.hat he said to Darrovl 'Hhile h

115 VIaS pretending to be his friend, and was, as a matter of

16 fact, knifing him in the back, I have a right to ask him,

17 did you say thus and so at HI' Lawler's and HI' Foster's

18 dictation? Did you inquire thus, did you, at lTr Lawler's

19 and HI' Foster's request) did you say thus and so to him?

20 Did he reply thus and so, and I a'U enti tIed to know what

; 21 he saVl on Saturday) and for that purpose I ~ entitled

22 to cross-examine him bout '::hat he CcJlle out here for, not

23 only as shoVfin.'S his interest in the case, but e.s showing,
I

124 if your Honor please, '~hether his contention that he is
\

,25 here to protect his reputation mayor may not be true.

26 am at liberty to show how far he -;rill go, ';fhat he vJill



enti tIed to memorandum made by the v!i tness ',vho testifi es

vate memorandu."'ll of conversations 'which may have occur-

nmae they took him up to the office, and showed him this.

a ri.~h t to every-j

Now, if your

2993

thing that he has seen in the meantime.

red between the defendant and any person, but I vrould be

say, '.'rhat questions he '/lill ask. I have

~ this witness testifies under all the conditions, and

that is particularly true, if your Honor please, v!hen he
)

sa~s that on Saturday, the moment I mentioned Foster's

Honor please, I would not be entitled, I a~lit it, I would

not be entitled, at least, to the District Attorney's pri-4

5

6

7

8

10

11

(l
1
I 2
i
I

: 3

12 What is the harm? What is the harm? 'Why can't I have it?

13 Why can't Yfe put it right in front of us and let me cross -

14 e'Lamine this witness about it? Ee is the kind of a 'witness

15

.16

\7ho, in the first place, h<.1S demanded immunity, therefore,

lUlder the 7th Appellate "fe are entitled to search every

17 - motive, e very stat er.1ent, every ac tion, Vle are enti tl ed to

end detectives OJ-J.d allows cross- 6X:c;.mination into their

and if your Honor has the sli3htest doubt ~e are at

Underhill

to take that so-called dict~raph stuff and lay it

is a net! book on criminal evidence, ,just the same thing,

published of law in a long time, and one of the most accu-

second place, lroore on Facts, the best book that has been

motive and actions to the fullest extent.

go to the utmost limits of cross-exmnination. In the

rate books, speaks of the testimony of informers, spies

18

19

20

21

.22
I

,23

\24
1
\25
I,



authori ti es together. I didn t t have an idea they had

Honor these authorities. I EJIl so thoroughly convinced

of it, he havi~g been shovm it, that I ask your Honor to

consider the matter briefly eno~~h to allow us to get the

2994.
r '-

/ '1 here c.nd cros B- examine on it, I woul d like to show your

( :
1 4

I 5

13

12

14

20

21

6

7

8

9

10

11
j

I

I
I
\
\ 15

I 16
I 17

18

19

I

l
\::
\ 24

sho';.m it to him, but it appears they have Sho'\VIl it to him.

They have shovm it to him for a purpose, and having 3hO\111

it to him for a purpose, they have answered our purpose

of allmvirl,S us to see it, and Yie have a rig ht to c ross­

examine him in reference to it. Now, I request your Honor
befo re

in all fairness that your Honor rules, if you have any doUbt
.\

about the matter, to let us produce at least the text-books

authorities on the proposition.

TEE COUHT: TO.~ et your point of view fully, I ',~onld like

to ask you one question.

HR ?.oGERS: yes sir.

THE COURT: Suppose instead of a dict~~raph device having
hand

been used, a short ~reporter had been conc ealed in th at room

and had taken d01V!l th e conversation and had tab-nsc ribed

it into longhand and that '.vas at the present time in the

poss ession of the District Attorney, ':lQuld you contend at

this time you had a right to have it?

25

26
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r--

19i 1 MR. ROGERS. 1 would surely have a right to have ,it,
~.

; 2 especially so, sir, if he had been shown it.

i 3 THE COURT· But in addition to that testirr,ony that it

14 \'Vas taken down and transcribed in an uninteligible form,

5 would. you con tend you had a r igh t to it?

6 MR. ROGERS· Then we have a right to see if it is ur.in-

7 teligible.

8 MR. FREDERICKS· If it is uninteligib1e to tee witness

9 the only thing then would be the effect it would have

10 on the Witness, if it was uninteligible to the Witness.

11 TEE COURT. 1 want to get at your point of view. This

12 is a very unusual ques tion •

13 MR • ROGERS. 1 think, if your Honor please, we call pro-

14 duce the authorities we would be entitled under these
I

15 I conditions to the shorthand report, but aside from that

16 I I et me call your Ponor' s at ten t ion--

17 THE COURT. There are probably no author ities you have

18 to the dictagraph, but on the shorthand reporter 18 notes

19 why, there ought to be author i ties avai lable •.

!r:R • ROGERS. 1 can't recall the case but 1 have a recol-

leotion of a case before Judge Smith where police detec­

tives made reports--;·tr. Appel reminds me of another case

which·the will outline to your Honor, but 1 have a recol­

lecti'~n of one case in wh lch 'f.r.Havil.ey, one of the police

detectives had memoranda of this sort and JJdge Sn~th

con,pelled its production, in view of the fact that the

20

. 21

22

23

24

25

26



\26 MR • FREDERICKS. Oh, no.
,

was the People of the State of California against a certain

to remind Mr. Fredericka, in one case, your Honor, which

purpose.

ourselves, and particularly in view of the confession of

the wi tne68 which is, no matter how he puts it, no ruatter

TPE COURT. 1 think that is your strongest point.

MR. ROGERS. But we have a right to look at it, therefore,

ger:tleman who was a trustee or councilman in the ci ty of

Long Beach, your Honor, there he was brought into the dis­

trict attorney's office and 1I1r. Fredericks, himself, examin d

him, had a shorthand reporter there and it was taken down,

wi tness had seen it during his presence upon the stand.

Now, this witness has seen this during his presence

upon the st,md. lNe are not obliged to take his statement

that he merely glanced over one or two pages and it was

uninteligible. We are not obliged to take that. 1!e has

seen it, he has seen the docurrent, he has seen it for a

ant there concerning his gUilt and he was compelled to

produce the shorthand notes.

how he glosses it over, no matter how he dresses it up,

we are entitled to it, because he came out here to get it.

MR • APPEL. Your Honor, in one case, if you permit me

and he said to him, "Now,come on, what is the use of your

denying this," and all that. Afterwards he brought the

Witness onthe stand to show the admissions of the defend-

i
l
i
I
i 17
I
j 18
I
! 19

I 20
I

\ 21

\ 22
~

i 23
~
\ 24
\
\25

I:
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\ 5
\

\ 6
\
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I 8

I9
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i
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!
I 12
~
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MR. APPEL. JUdge Smith said this, that that transcript

of the shorthand notes indicated, your Honor, that the

confession had been dragged froIL him by every artifice,

by ever coercion, and everything that was inhuman to the

man, and he would not allow it to go in, and afterwards

the case, your Honor, al though it went to the jury,

there was a disagreement.

MR • FREDERICKS. And he afterwards plead gUil ty •

MR. APPEL. He afterwards plead gUilty:,andyou allowed him

to pay a fine for the purpose of getting out of the box.

MR. ROGERS. 1 would like to produce the authorities.

12 THE COURT·. 1 think very well of l/'r. Rogers sugges tion

that authorities be presented.

tien until to:::orrow 1 will hear you then.

1 don't mean

can go on with your croGs-examination and leave the ques-

may proceed with your cross-examination now.

THE COURT. Now, Captain Fredericks, just a moment--l think

the burden here is still on t~e def_endant and hehas 'asked

to present authorites, says he is unprepared at the pre-
am

sent tinJe. Now, l/willing to take this matter up at

9 a t clock tomorrow morning for the purpos e of hearing the

defendant'a authorities, if you desire to have it. You

by that 1 am willing to adjourn at this time but if you

of
MR. FREDERICKS. 1 don't see ;,<3 particle"use of wasting

time on it. Now, the fact ~s brought out by this witness

are these--

14

115 I
I

16 \
---17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 JAR. ROGERS. 1 will do the beat 1 can.

2' UR. FREDERICKS. In view of the fact tr;at this wi tneaa

3 may.not be hare at 9 o'clock if it i6 only to be an
to 8.8 k

4 argwnent, 1 think 1 would like/him a couple of questions

5 as to the facta which the record may ahow, but from

6 counael ' s argument he haa a wrong idea of 1t.

7 THE COURT. You can ask him if you want to.

8 MR • ROGERS· 1 clidn' t ge t ;,ir. Fxeder ick' 6 ob3ervation.

9 (Laststatewent by !tiro Fredericks read by the reporter.)

10 'mE COURT. 1 lla9ume, gentlemen, it \1111 not be neces-

MR. FREDERICKS. Q 1 want to ask yeu, Ur. Ean'ington,

Q And the tin.e you spoke of was between the time you

were you in n~ office Saturday afternoon at all, afternoon

sury, 1 don't expeot to have the jury here at 9 o'clock.

A No, sir, 1 'NfA3 not.

A After court adjourned7af ter lunch '?

Q No, no, after lunch.

11

12
1

13 \

14 I
1

15 !I
16 I

)
12 o'clock, or approXimately? A Y06 ,air •

'!lent to lunch and the timo you 0 arne up from court at17

18
19 lItR • FREDERICKS. That is all.

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



you '·"/01'0 hore taking this dictt\qraph stuff? A yes sir.

un HOGEHS: },fr Harrin1ton. did you soo 1Il' Foste:r 'th1.ilo1

2

3

4

Q

Q

How oft on? A I think 1 t was twice.

~7here? A ]111' LElwler t s office.

5 Q Was the matter of this dicti:\;gaaph and its progress

6 under discussion? A yes sir.

tho sene place you '.7 ere when you got this

know that.

lor's office? A No sir.

Do you know w11.e-.re he ·,.vas stoppins, as a matter of fact?

DOn't you know he ';ran ntopping at tho Hoyvrard Hotel

Ho sir.

And referred to? A yes sir.

He had a room there, didn't he? A I don,t know.

Are you flnre you didn't see him at the Hayvrard'sHotel?

I saw him in the lobby of t.he hotel once, yes sir.

SaY! him in the lobby of .the hotel? A Yes sir.

Hoyr many times? A Oh, three or four timen.

Did youree 1lI' JJ8wleI' ever day? A Uostly, yea sir.

Did you rec M'r Lawler at all about tho dictegrapl1 mat-

Did you see :Mr Fast er at any ot her }Jlac 0 than HI' La\"(-

~]hat is that? A I don,t know that.

Q

Q

Q

Q I-Ie hired a room nCAt to yours, didn't he? A I don't

Q You s a\7 ur Foster at 1 east twice during that tine?

Q

Q

A

A

Q

A yes sir.

t er, in the absence of HI' Foster? A yes sir.

7

8

9

10

11

12
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that I was in toym.

Q You saw him in the lobby? A Yes sir.

matter, ClCceptil1g HI' Foster and ]{r Law1 er? A no oi r.

VI11ile the dicta,graphing '":as,:;oing on? A yes sir.

Are you sure of that? A yes sir.

Did you see enybody else concerning tile dicta?,raphil1'j

And you didntt refer to the di~tt\grapl1il1.g matter to

""lhat time \/as that? A It was durinq the fi rst "veek

Q

Q

A

him? A No sir.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11 Q
i

12 I
Q

Talked to no one? A No sir.

Not -to a living soul? A No sir.

Q WherOW8G the dictagraph? A It yras in the room.

Were yon told it "Jas put there? p_ Ur Lawl er tal d me

tlfter you came to Los A'1gcles about the dictagraph matter?

Did you look to see? A yes sir.

Whero? A Back of tho bureau.

yes sir.

And you arc sure of that? A That is my best recol-

1'[hat is that? A I don!t know.

q Did you sed it Dut there? A No sir.

it ":JO S thero.

Q

Q

Q \?ho put it there? A I dontt know.

A

Q

Q

Q That is your best 1~ecollection. Arc you sure you ,-~id

not speak to mybody aside fram ur Foster end l'Tr L~.wler

1 cction.

13

14

15

16 I
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1 Q. '<Tllen did you look to s eo? A 1:1hon I first went into

2 tho room.

Q Did you hire tho room? A Yea sir.

Q Did you pay for it? A yes sir.

Q '7ho Save ;you thO money to pay for it? A I paid for

it myself.

3

4

5

6

7 Q J)id yoU tnm it in as an o',:pense? A :Hot as ,'11 0X-

8 pens0; l!r Lawlor ref1mdod itt. 0 me:

9 Q ur Lawler gave it back to you? A yes sir.

10 Q VAlon did he ~ive it back to you? A 011, probably 'in-

11 side or two 01' tIl ro e YJeeks.

12 That is the rent of thO room? A Yos sir.

13 Q Did you sloop thore? A yes sir.

14 Q, That was, as a matter of fact, your habitation?

15 I A yes sir.

16

17 Q

Did yon cat your meals at tho hotel? A lIo sir.

'Whom did you s eo while yon were here, oJccept Fr Dar-

18 ro':!, 1.~r Lawlor <:'Jld Hr Fos ter whil e you v: ero here on that

19 dictt~~ra1Jhing e--:':pedi tion? A Towards the very last I. S8Yl

20 Hr FOrd, probably a day or tyro before I meft.

Q rlhore? A21

22

23 Q

At the District Attorney's office.

Did you~o up et his request? A Yea sir.

Talk over tllo cictagraph matter with him? A no sir.

'I
'f

24 Q Dioll't mention it? A lIo sir.

25 Q Did he T'1ontion it to you? A No sir.

26 Q Did ho kIlo':! anythin1 c,bout it? A I don,t :know.
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1 You don't know?

2 Jm FlLIT,DRHICKB: Obj ected to.

3 THE ,COUnT.: Obj ection sustained.

4 fIR HOGEnS: ".'1hen you mede tm apnointment "'Ji th Hi' Darrow,

5 \"mom vlOuld you c all up? A I \70uld c all up Ill"' De -rrow.

6 Q Viol1 , when you _- you cE.llod up rrr narrO'\"l? A Yes

7 sir.

Don't you Imo"7 'i'rllat it ",ras for? A LaYrlel~ asl:ed me

Q For what pnrpose did you tell him that HI' Darrow Yrou1d

Q And told him th at thes'tac;e '::as set? A I told him Hr

sir.And then. ".11om did yon cell up, E.nybod:r? A yes

Who? A 111' La",rler.

To make ~.n r.PP0intmenc '7i th him? A yes 131:<:".

And vnlY to apnrise him of that fact? A

ed me to do it, that is all.

be over? A So as to t".}J1)risc him of that fact.

Q In c~ch instance? A yes sir.

Darrow would be over.

Q

Q.

Q.

8

9

10

11

12 \

13[
14

1

15 I
!

16 !

17

18

19 to c all him up, (?-n<1 I did it_

20 On each occ asio11 ';'I11on you ::mcc eeded in mt'lkin~ en

21 apIJointment '71th l~r Darro'."!? A yes sir.

26 THE COURi': Hr nog ers; yon:::- cp.estion is e_ll<l'O'(~d;

22

23

24

25

Don f t you k!1o';' '-rhy?

J'iR 'FOrm: 0ht: "re object to that as callin~ for a conclusion.
~

'.PEE COUT{£': overrulod.

ER T\OGERS: The yritness is 811111y-s11al1yin3-
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1 is out 0:1:' order.

2 HR :DUTIl): I ask that yonI' Honor reprove him for th at 1'0-

3 mark•.

4 FE TtOGEF\S:· Please answer.

5 "Jhat is the qnestion? (Lc,ot question road by the

6 relJOrter.) I 11' esume it ",'lao enabling him to notii'y the

7 r8porta~..s.

9 R. noporte1's to do \'ihat? A To take dO·J1J.1 tho conversa-

8 Q,

'.
vth.·~~ "'(~'Jc:)·r'.t. o''''''?, ~ l. ..!.. /.t .l-.... .L. Q • A I don, t know.

10

11

12 I
1

13

14

tion.

Q Yo'tll~ i doc of the conversation was to .r; at JfJ.~ nurro'.~, to

rr,ive saroD evidcnc e ~'1ainst himself? A prL'l'Ylarily to eiva

it. so I 'lolJ.ld not be accnsed of jUry-lJl'i'binZ.

15 j ect.

Ti18n c.id you. t ('11 ?!r La"\71er that that. was ~rour id ea?

lro, I don' J,:. krlO'.7 t hat I told him th at. t but that is

16

17

18

tl1~t your idea? A yea sir.

19 yrhr.t was 0po::'ntil1e in TTY mind at the time.

20 :Did he tell you tlH~t he ,··It.s intorented in t.he rah~J~ilit

21 tion? A No sir.

22

23 A

TIid tlwy 1: ell you yon '-:ere nUi>pic ioned of j nr:r-bribery?

Of j:1r,;/-briLilr.'.) n1b :Ji1", not until the end of the

24 year, not unt.il aftor. the f:rrost, then Lawler spolw to me

26 c.bont ';;hc money ",nd len eN! 1,101'0 .:.bont tIli 3 thinlj t;u~n I 1

25 .:::nd he sem-ned to be llz,ggin~ all ~-.;lC tine that
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on. I toll him if he arrf'..n,~;cd t.ho mat.ter I could~ at Hr

Darrovi to tell his nido, and Lawlor could jttq~e ',7hether

I had an/thin~ to do it or not.

Q . Then you -'rere under f(J,a\"'s that the~l believed you ,,:uil ty?

A I '.rollld not 'rr~l1t to have it ,~o eo far as that, bnt

certainly the;( ~'Cre red-hot after eveI"'Jbody the t ,..ras con­

nected vrith Darro~.

q :i:Tow, in view of tilo fact that you put this jOb uP,

",s a matter of :fect, didn t t you put the ori(:in8l job up?

A I did not, r.nd I will waive im.'i1uni ty this minute if

you \Iill try me on that ono ch argo.

Q You -:till uaivo imTUuni ty? A On jUIY-bribin~.

Q Will yon "-{aive inr':1u-'1ity on everything? A r fm saying

on j uTy-bribin,g; -- no a1 r.

q \1iJ.1 you weiva immuui ty on cverything? A '70 "ril1

take t;"!Ve:;:-:rthiug c.s it comefh

1lfR 'FORD: '?eo1:Jject to that question as not bein~ a

pro~.c quostion. TllC question of "raivin,N, im.'1:!1mi ty is somo-

thin,~ th&t has~ot nothin~ to do '::hatevor ','!i th e.ny other

(:~h('.rgef3. lTo,y, ~hc 1c:'3-;:; answer of the 'rlLtness is not

l'ea11y :,1<:sp:mcive to the Clu ostion.

TEE COTF~T: Do :ron --"Gut it stricl:en out.

"7-R mT{D: Ho, t,nt it is noy! -- 'but "!O ob,j ect to eny fur­

ther c ross-ex:amination e.lOllj th.at line. ~.To j nst obj cc t

to t.ll e 12<st '1l1cstion :.'S imTl2tc.dnl.

'l'HE COURT: Is th ore anytlliur; unsns'.7cred, any unansv:cre



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

~ 11 IJ 12 I

~\13

~114
: 15
!
)

116
r
! 17
I

I 18
i
! 19
I

J 20

I 21

I 22

23

24

\ 25

\ 26

3005

question before the court?

un ·':OGERC:;: yeS, I am asking him if he Vlill Ylaive immunity

on e veI'Ythintj •

lffR FOW: To that question \',;e obj ect as i rrel evant end innna­

terial, mld not cross-exanination.

THE COlm.T: OLj ection overruled.

]lR }POTID: I "ronld liko to be heard on that just a moment.

TUB aOUffi': very \vell.

vn T'OTID: Connae! has put to him a supposi tioua case. ThO

vlitnoss has said, "If you \till try me on the Charge of

jt1:ry-bribinE~, I 'Till vTB.ive ir-liiltUlity." UO'u, Hr Ho?;ers

comes back with "rall you'::aivo immunity on everything"?

lTow, rrr ?J:>gers cannot trtJ him for jury-bribil'l..'!. It is

purely s hypothetical matter that cannot wer ox:ist.

TI-!E COU"ltr: You mi'Sht have had that voilun tary statement

Bt~icken out and eliminated all that.

FH F01W: I em not obj oot1nu, to that. If counsel "rants it

n triclwn au t, counsel may have it stricken out. It ion't

rcsponnive to any ql1estion before thO cou It. It isn't up

to us to ask to have it stricken out.

TPj;: COUHT: I think in view of the voluntartJ statenant that

was ~bren, it is not response to c::.ny question --

j"R 1TR'-TE1UCES: I!e Y!ants to }mo"",: '.'.hether he '1"'ill waive im-

nrunitjr. He can't ....:aive in'n:1unity. That is a matter that

tho law operates on.

TEE COln.T: Here is e voluntary statement that COttnB 01



-;

thim~s, or shoot at °",.ch other in the da""1~ ~md c- lot of. -.\.,
;

other snppositions. Got about t?..S much to do ''.'i tIl this
'[

HTI. r:OGERS: ~.VhEn you said that you·-erc perfectly -"rillin~

A Ho sir.

(Last question road b:~ the r0)X>rter.) ,

rm HOGETIS: Read the question.

to the Cll1estiol1 of motivo. Ovol'l1.tled.

volunteerednomethin'-~'doesn!t i 1 alm it meterial.

THE COU1~T;: yeS, I think it is mat eri al, I!r Ford; i t ~io os

isnuo boloro th 0 court.. rl'he mere fact '::11 nt the ":i tnenn

be materita'Q., mnst be pertinent before thin court to sarno

3006

terial 'q1.1P,stlons. Evc:-:y question put to thin '7:1 t.ness must

case as t~o proposition of yjlether or not the moon is made

oil; g r/een.che:ese. The fuc t thnt th ('! wi tunss me.lees an imma-

a fist fight wi th him; somethin,':; of that sort. Counsel

a right to analyze.

and ti e their feet tog ether, &"1d a number of different

consent to ,carry it on ':.ri thout gloves or wi thont surgeons,

terial 8:nsiVr.~r doesn't ':ove counsel a right to ask imma-

mi~ht, by that voltmt.ary s tatemont, ask him if he vlill

be tried on .1ury-bribin~ you ]mew very well, didn't you,

THE COURI:': Shows his state of mind.

UR FaUD: The 'lfi tness here misht state his ability to have

l!H FREDERICKS: For what pl1rpose? It is immaterial.
j

1:!R.FOTID: That is our ol:(jection; it in absilute1Y imma-

terialmatter.

)
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1 that it was only you and Fnmklin for it, end that nobody

2 but God could convict you; wasn.t that wIlY' you said it?

3 A Ho sir.

4 HR FTUmEHI CF..8 : Glad vre found out now ",mo the jury-briber

5

6 HR :DAlln.OVr: Will the reporter reed that remark of t.h e

7 State's Attorne'J. I didn't quite understand it.

8 (Last statoment of IP' Fredoridku read by the reporter.)

9 jEll TWa ERS : Give me tl~t ugain. (The sr~c statement read

ag ain bJf the reporter.)

very well you "fere E,n :'gent of tile state "ihen you pulled

ito ff, and that it '"ras nothing but a confederat e th at you

Q You knO'."! t elso, ythem ~ron S aid you ":rere p3 rfcc tly will­

in~ to .1';0 to trial on t.he matter of jury-bribing, you }::new

nIl;

'Here, didn.t you? A 110 sir.

Q Bntyou knew yon couldn't. loe tried on it at

10

11

12 I
13

14

15 I

161
17 did..."l1't you kIlo\v that? A lTo air.

18

19
Q A."rld yon say you are a I aVlYer , d a you1

About 20 times that is in the record:i I sup

20 pose it is harmless.

21 It is }Xlrfectly hannless for him to say he

Tho m"ttcr has been i'n.lly gon e

22 is a lav!yor; certainly it. in. Wnen yon eud ~rr L~.wlor

23 and V"r Toster•. tho attorney for th e Frectors -- inves.Li-

24 <:;o.,\:;or fOl~ the Erectors' Association met to:3ether, c.nd they

25 told you wl:la t to ask Iarrow, didn't they) in e :~cn eral "~;ay?

26
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on crol3D-e::~8!I1ination. He stated repeatedly what occurred.

A yes sir.

I'!R HOGEns: Tha t ',~ras -- They tol d you, thon, what to ask him

for the purpose of clearing your reputation, did tlley?

A no sir.

Q Or they then told you ythat to ask him for some oth or

purpose, then? A No sir.

Q TIley .told you, in a {Soneral '('my, ~:hat to ask him, but

you say not for t.ho purpose of clearing your reputation?

A They didntt t.ell -- Ur Lawler didn't state Yfhat the ob-

ject Yras.

Q Did YOll think it was for the pUrpOSf) of clmring your

reputation? A So I took it, and that is what I meant

the:r" should do.

Q. You took it :Mr Lawler's sn,<jBestion to you end the sug-

g €lstion of l!r Foster 'vore made to you so as to enable ~ou

to cl ear your -'eputation, did you? A Yes si r.

Q '7hat purpose did you think -chey Vlere made to you for?

A They were lookin~ for infol1nation.

Q On --[hat? A On matters connec ted vii th Darrow's con-

duct.

Q ~~d you ~~reed to. put those questions to Darro~ 00

that they could get information out of: him? A So that

they and I could.

Q That is, they and yon? A llfr Lawl er and I.

Q. SO what? A So Hr La';rl er and I could get informati

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 Q DO you ]mm'l who paid tho bill for the dictagraph?

2 Don,t you know Toster did? A I do not.

3

4

1m FOrm: In view of that, I Ylould like to ask if connanl

isry,oin,~ to soek to introduce affidavits, hearsay evidence

5 in this case?

6 THE CounT: I have no idee.

Willis.

l~R AP'EL: Throym out?

Let the complaints of the DistrictHR APPEL:

be entered in the record.' We ylill dispose of tllem som

have nothin~ to refute, nothing to say.

is not materiel, bl1.t it is all in. ~",e 6i t idly by and ':re

makes a long argunont on facts, end thO court listens pa­

tiently to him until he has gotten through ,md finds it

TIR FRImETIICES: That is the trouble, he goos ahoad and

mind; what he is going t.o do.

THE COUnT: I '.7ill ~ive up <my at t cmpt to read Ur ?o~ ers'

HR FREDERICK.S: You b cd.

Jrn. APmL: 7roll, I don't bot.

vthich was aftel"'V'lards thro\"Jn out \'{hen it carno before :Judge

HR 'PORD: I only jUdge the future from tile past.

1m FHF:IYRRICl-:3: J.n affidavit which conn 01 made hIbmself

1JfR }?ORD:' I have, your Hono r. I can tell you; he 'i!ill sffif,

didn't you, in this affidavit there say ao and so, reciting

pfge after JE.ge from that affidavit.

I'

12
1

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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8

9
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11
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1 HR ",'lOGERS: Did you have any memorandum of the C11.1estions

2 that you were to P1.1t to jliT Dafrow when you pret ended to be

3 hiS.friend and Got him into your room? A No sir.

4

5

6

Q

Q

Q.

That ';ras Ie ft to your recolle ction? A yea sir.

Did you make eny memorandum? A lifo sir.

Did you make any memorandum of the telephone c~nuni-

7 c etion that you had with )\~r Darrow over the telephone?

8 A no sir.

9 Q. Did you make any statement direc tly after 'eh c tel ophone

I mean to say, did you tell it to anybo~J immediately

10

11

12

communication t~S to th e communication?
.

stand your rruestion.

Q.

A I don It under

13 after it happened? A No sir~

14 Q Were you in your room when you did that teJIephoning?

15 \

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

A I don't remember."

1~!hat is that? A I don,t remember.
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23s1 Q nan you remember whether you ware in your hotel or not?

2 A 1 was inthe hotel.

3 Q rou remember whether it was morning or afternoon 7

4 A The after roon.

5

6

Q Are you sure of that? A Yes, sir.

Q You reoall tha tit was inthe morning-- A About

7 noon, 1 would say, probably a little before noon.

8 Q 1 am referr iog now to the las t telephone. A Oh, the

9 las t.

10 Q 'rhe lao tone. A My recolleotion of the las tone was

11 ~n the afternoon.
!

12 I Q Do you remerrber where yoawere when youdid that last

13 telephoning? A 1 was in my room •

14
I15 I,
I

16 !
I

. Q Anyone there? A No, eir.

Q When you were told that you were to

"of the dictagraphing d~a',yOU ask .where
\

be the instigator

the other end of

17 that dictagraph was going to be? A No, sir.

18 Q When you looked at the dictagraph behind the bureau

19 what kind of a looking thing was it? A A black ins tru-

20 ment about the size of a small saucer.

21 Q Did you roll the bureau out and inve~gate? A No,

22 sir •

23 Q Did you SOB wh ether they broke ho1 eo in the walls for

24 the wires? A No, sir.

25 Q Didn't you have any curiosity to kno\"{ anything about it?

26 A No, sir.
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1 Q Did you ever see a dictagraph before? A No, air.

2 Q Well, you didn't have a bit of curiosity, then, to see

3 how. the thing worked? A 1 saw the diotagraph there.

4 Q 1 mean you didn't have any onriosity toaee how it was

5 operated? A 1 knew it was operated by sounds.

6 Q 1 mean to say in what manner and in what way it was

7 operated? A Oh, 1 underatood ttat they took sound waves

8 from the room.

9 Q, Well, did you have any curiosity to kno',"1 where the wires

10 went? A No, sir.

11 Q Didn't even take a look to see? A No, sir.
I12 I Q Was there any test made out of any kind, of a trial

13 heat as it were, kind of a warming up heat? A Not in my

14

115

116

presenoe.

Q . Did 1heytell you that they had tried it out?

A No, sir.

17 Q And you didn 1 t knew, then, whether the thing was in

18 working order or in operation or noti A No, sir-

19 Q So, when you telephoned to Darrow you didn't know whe-

20 tbcr t1:e dictagraph waa already to dictagraph or not?

Q Without knowing that the dictagraph was ready to

A No, sir.

Q Wel~, did you ask him if he wan ready to shoot or go on

or work, or something of that kind?

MR. FREDERICKS- Ask who, your Honor?

21

22

23

24

25

26

MR • ROGERS - Q 1,awler7 A No, air.
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1 graph, you didn't ask anoz questions about it, didn't know

2 anything about it? Yo~merelY telephoned Darrow to oome doml

3 the~e, is that so? A 1 assumed it was all right.

4 Q What led you to assume it was all right? A The faot
,

5 that Mr. Lawler said itwaa there.

6 Q When did he say it was there? A In the forenoon 4i

7 Q How did he tell you, by telephone 1 A By telephone.

8 Q -Told you that it was there and to get Darrow? A 1

9 don't know that he used that expression.

10 Q Well, something to that effeot? A Yes, sir.

11

12 I

13 1

141
I

15 I

Q And then what did you do to get DarroW'? A Telephoned

him.

Q And did you get him? A Yes, sir.

Q Where? A At your office.

Q What did you tell him over the telephone? A 1 spoke

16 to him on general matters.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



A My recollection is 1 told him 1 had just

1

2

Q Well, what did you tell him over the telephone

office?

-- 30141
at my

3 arrived in town and aervedwith a Federal sUbpoena and

4 wanted to see him.

5 Q Wanted to see him. Tell him where you were at that

6 time? A Yes, air.

7 Q And where was that? A In the Hayward Hotel.

8 Q Did you tell him the nun;ber of the room? A Yee, sir.

9 Q When he came did he sond up his card? A No, sir.

10 Q Come to the room? A Yea, sir.

11 Q You gave him the number? A Yes, sir.

12 Q Now, how many times in all do you oay you telephoned
\

13 narrow to corne? A 1 ohould think three or four times.

14

15
1

16

17

18

19

Q At each time at the behoef of ;,1r. Lawler? A Yes, air.

Q By the way, what'mrr.e \Tiere you regis tered under?

A Gorman , James Gorman.

Q James Gorman1 A Yee, 8 ir •

Q At the Hayward Hotel? A Yes, sir.

Q Did Mr. Lawler know you were masquerading under an

20 aoaumed name? A Yes, sir.

21 Q Was it at his suggestion that you adopted a name that

22 was no t your own or your father t s before you? A Ye£) air.

23 Q Did Lawler suggest that you adopt the name of Gorman?

24 A No.

25 JAR • FREDERICKS. 1 object to t.~at aa imrraterial.

26 THE COUR T. "verruled.
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5

6

7

8

9

10

11
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13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Q BY Am. ROGERS. Whose invention was that name of

Gorman you used and took on that occasion? A It was

mine.

Q And did you inform Mr. Lawl er you were masquerading

under that narre? A Yea, sir.

Q Did you tell Mr. Foster also, in oase he wanted to talk

to Mr. Harrington that he was then being known as Mr.

Gor man? A No, e ir •

Q Did Foster know your name was Gorman at the Hayward?

A 1 don't know.

Q, Did anybody else around there know your real name?

A My real name?

Q Yes. A No, sir; not that 1 know of.

Q Now, seeing that you have been talking to Mr. Lawler,

1 wi 11 ask you if you knew when you mentioned that Mr.

Darrowahowed you the roll cf bills and told you he got

it out of Tveitmoe's bank, that M~ Lawler was after M~

Tvei trnoe? A No, sir.

Q What? A 1 knew he had him before the grand jury, but

that was all 1 knew.

Q Why, didn't you know, all the time that he was trying

to prosecute 'u. Tvei tmoe? A 1 knew he was after these

men.

Q What? A 1 knew he was after these men.

Q After Tveitzr.oe, didn't you? A Yes, sir.

Q Isn,t that Why you put that name in,Tveitmoe's
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1 A It \vas not.

2 Q Well, do you know why, for Heaven's sake, Mr. Darrow

3 would tell you he got the money at Tveitmoe's bank?

4 JiR. FORD. We object to that onthe ground it was gone

5 into fully onFriday or Saturday.

6 JAR • ~OGERS. No, 1 looked over the reoord and found 1

7 orr.itted it.

8 THE COURT. What. is the faot as to that, Mr. Rogers?

9 MR. ROGERS. The fact that he said Mr. Darrow told him he

10 got it at Tveitmoe'a bank was mentioned, but 1 didn't

11 ask him how ·it happened.

12 I MR. FORD. At crosB-examlnation--

13 THE COURT. My reoollection is that you went into that

pretty fully.

MR. ROGERS. Your Honor'a recollection may be better than

16 mine, 1 have taken a pretty good look at this record,

17 however, sir. Your Honor may be r igh t •

18 MR. FORD. The first question on cross-examination started

19 in with Tveitmoe's bank at page 2774, the first question

20 you star ted out, ";l.ro Harr ington, do you say !'I.r. Darrow

21 told you athia bouse that he got the $10,000--" and then
.

22 further down, line 18 you say, "Darrow got the $10,000

23 a t Tve itmo e 'B bank".

24 MR • ROGERS. Yes, but that is not the present question 0

25 MR. FORD. That is along tr.at.eubject.

26 THE COURT. What is the question, ~. Reporter?

(Ques tion read. )
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1 MR. ROGERS. 1 will change the question> sir.

at Tveitmoe's bank?

gone into~

MR. FREDER lCKS • 1 dbject to that beoause it haa

Do you know why M~ Darrow told you he got the money I

been alreJy

Q2

3

4

5

6 THE COURT. Objec tion sustained.

7 MR. ROGERS. Exception.

8" MR. ROGERS. Q Wasn't that a part of your further agreeme t

9 with Law 1el' ?

10 l!R • FREDERICKS' The eame objection, the eame reason, and

11 fm:ther J it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial.

MR • ROGERS.

"THE COURT·

I'

12 i \5HE COunT-
i

13
1

14 !
l ~ f
VI

Objection overruled.

it was rot.

1 have Bent for a document, y'Jur Honor.

The olerk has gona for Aomedocurrants> 1 don't

16 know where they are, but he asked to be exoused that he

17 might go down to the office and look for SOIDe documents.

18 MIl • ROGERS. Yes J sir.

19 THE COURT· Gentlemen of the jury> bear in mind your admoni

20 tion- Wewil1 take a recess for five minuteewhile we

21 are waiting for the papers.

22 (Reoess for five minutes. After recess. )

23 THE COURT. Did you find those papers, Mr. Srtith?

24 THE CLERK. The olerk in charge of those papers is not

25 here and the res t of them cannot place them.

26 THE COURT - Mr. Rogers informs me that he oannot
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1 w!th the oroaB-examination without those papers.

2. MR. FREDERICKS. What papers are they?

3 THE COURT 1 do not know what t~ey are, but they are some

4 papers in the custody of the clerk and he has a right to

5 them.

6 TfTE CLERK. T1"e case waG tried hefore JUdge Willis and the

7 papere were sent down to the clerk'a cffi~e.

8 THE COURT. 1t wae in connection V1 i th the contempt prooeed-

9 ings of Foster?

10 Am. FREDERICKS· 'What do y01.' want? Foster's affidavit or

11 your own?

12 MR • ROGERS. Both of' them.

13 UR • FR~;DErUCK8. Yeu have a oopy of youre, 1 auppooe?

14

115

16

MR • ROGERS· 1 was not furniahed wi th a oOW· of the other.

1 want to get it. Resides that, nry throat is just about

gone.

17 TFE COURT· 1 thknk practically the afternoon is almost

18 go ne and }.tr. Rogers tells me he needs the papers and he has

19 to prepa.re himself for a matter coming up tomorrow at. 9

20 o'clock and requesta an adjournnent at this time and 1

21 think that is fair • It is unders tood th3.t you V'I ill be

22 here at 9 0 'olock tomorr ot\' morning '7

23 MR. ROGERS. Yeo, sir. 1 will be here :It 9 o·clock.

24 THE COURT. Unless thsre is objection 1 will not ask the

25 jury to be here.

26 MR • ROGERS· 1 t is jus t a.s they feel. Jus t as they 1 ik



1 THE COURT. Gentlerren of the jury t the court is about to

2 adjourn and will convene at 9 o'olock for the purpose of

3 hearing an argument on a question of law; you mayor may

4 not be interested in it; at any rate, your presence

5 will not be required until 10 o'cloCk.

6 (Jury admonished.) The court will now adjourn until 9

7 0 'cloak tomorrow morning.

8 ------

9

10

11

12

13

14
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16 I
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